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CORPORATE INFORMATION (Continueq)
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBREE

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
—E-tf 2R —T-hf ZE-MmFE ZT-=F%
Revenue (HK$'000) Wi (F&7T)
a. Construction aBE 912,789 822,377 704,126 348,300 640,112
b. Property leasing bh.yEHEE 142,952 145,202 142,048 135,763 133,588
¢. Property development CMEER = - - - -
1,055,741 967,579 846,174 484,063 773,700
Segment results (HK$'000) PBEE(TET)
a. Construction a & 88,536 72,693 66,142 70,326 35,344
b. Property leasing b M%EHEE 86,679 89,824 92,264 90,285 93,749
¢. Property development CHEER (3,484) (18) (35) - -
171,731 162,499 158,371 160,611 129,093
Adjusted profit for the RBEFERT
year (rote () (HK$'000) (i) (FET) 120,297 116,734 116,090 107,544 81,586
Current ratio TELE 4.89 1.07 1.19 1.84 1.55
Gearing ratio (note (i) BRE/HLE () 100.1% 433% 50.7% 45.1% 64.8%
Net gearing ratio (ote (i) FEREBWLE (H(i) 83.1% 36.3% 42.3% 31.2% 57.1%
Return on equity [ NEE: 7.70% 16.2% 15.5% 12.2% 12.2%
Note: it

() Adjusted profit for the year is calculated based on the profit for the ()  ARFEEFEEFTHIREFE RN T MK EDE
year and adjusted by excluding the changes in fair value of investment NHEZERETH
properties

(i)  Gearing ratio represents total interest-bearing borrowings divided by (i) EABEL RIEE BERG AR EERE BRI
shareholders’ equity and multiplied by 100% 100%

(iiy  Net gearing ratio represents total interest-bearing borrowings net of cash (i) FEXBBLL REHBRIAE MIRTERE 2 @5
and bank balances, divided by shareholders’ equity and multiplied by 100% BB AR R A 2 B3 R BA100%

4 GRAND MING GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED e ANNUAL REPORT 2016/17



FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

EFEHBHEE
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
—B-t% T % ZF-RF ZT-mF ZT-=%
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER TET TET TET TET
RESULTS £
For the year ended 31 March BE=A=+—HIFE
Revenue Y zs 1,055,741 967,579 846,174 484,063 773,700
Profit before taxation BB AR A 227,318 427,110 352,149 463,402 165,959
Profit for the year AEGF 203,020 401,929 327,813 438,482 148,981
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
AS at 31 March R=EA=+—H
Total assets BEE 5,540,781 3,829,800 3,482,638 2,801,509 2.292,427
Total liabilities BaffE 2,905,828 1,356,073 1,362,729 981,080 1,002,023
Total equity BEs 2,634,953 2473727 2,119,909 1,820,429 1,290,404

HEREEMERERAT  2016/17 FEHE 5



CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EFERE

Chan Hung Ming
R 7L B8R

Chairman

FE

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of
Grand Ming Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am delighted
to present the annual report of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2017 (“FY 2017").

RESULTS

The Group’s net profit attributable to owners of the Company for
FY 2017 amounted to approximately HK$203.0 million, representing
a decrease of approximately HK$198.9 million or 49.49% over
approximately HK$401.9 million for the corresponding year ended
31 March 2016 (“FY 2016"). Earnings per share were HK31.5 cents.
Excluding the fair value gains on investment properties, the Group
recorded net profit for the year of approximately HK$120.3 million,
representing an increase of HK$3.6 million or 3.05% over approximately
HK$116.7 million for FY 2016.

DIVIDENDS

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of HK4.0 cents
per share to shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) whose
names appear on the register of members of the Company on 3 August
2017. Subject to approval by the Shareholders in the forthcoming annual
general meeting, the proposed final dividend warrants is expected to be
dispatched to Shareholders on 11 August 2017.

AANERKREAKERZRARAR ([ARF])E
F(EFHe([EF) ) MAREARARE
MEBAR (BB AKREDBE_FT—LF=A
=t+t—BLEFE(=F—tFEDNFH-

RARGEA AEEANEER —-ZT —+F3%5F%203.0
BEBT REE-_ZE—A"F=A=+—HI#H
EFE ([ ZZ—RFE]) D401 98 8B TRIH
198.95E B/E7T549.49% ° T E T A31.581 - Hfl
BRINEMEZ AFERER  AEBRFERNES
WHREI1203FEE T BT —FENH1167A
BT INA3.6 8 &% T 503.05% °

JBe B

EXeRann —_E—tE\A=RABIAEARF
PR AMARARBRR ([BR])IRERBEE
B4 EEFERRAERRBF 4
BERTEFE - ERRE 2 RAREERFTHR
“EEFNAT-BEXATER-
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (Continued)

EERE (&

Together with the interim dividend of HK4.0 cents per share already
paid, the total dividend for FY 2017 will amount to HK8.0 cents per share,
representing a payout ratio of approximately 42.9% (based on the total
dividends for FY 2017 and the Group's profit for the year excluding the
increase in fair value of investment properties).

BONUS ISSUE OF SHARES

To respond the support of Shareholders, the Company had issued bonus
shares on 16 August 2016 on the basis of one bonus share for every ten
then existing shares held by Shareholders.

The Board now proposes a bonus issue of shares on the basis of one
bonus share for every ten existing shares held by Shareholders whose
names appear on the register of members of the Company on 3 August
2017. The relevant resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming
annual general meeting, and if passed and upon The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) granting the listing of and
permission to deal in such new shares, shares certificates of the bonus
shares will be dispatched to Shareholders on 11 August 2017.

REVIEW OF OPERATION

Construction

The Group’s construction business primarily consists of provision of
building services as a main contractor in property development projects
for prominent local developers, as well as existing building alterations,
renovation and fitting-out works services. The revenue derived from the
construction business increased by approximately 10.99% or HK$90.4
million, from approximately HK$822.4 million FY 2016 to approximately
HK$912.8 million FY 2017. Increase in revenue is mainly derived from
a new construction project at Kai Tak, Kowloon for which construction
works commenced in June 2016.

As at 31 March 2017, the gross contract value of the construction
projects in progress amounted to approximately HK$2.85 billion.

Data Centre Premises Leasing

The Group owned, developed and leased out raised floor space of two
high-tier data centre buildings which are purposely built for data centre
use and feature high level of reliability, redundancy and security. The first
high-tier data centre, namely iTech Tower, continued to operate well and
contributed a stable rental income inflow to the Group. The second high-
tier data centre, namely iTech Tower 2, had been put into operation and
the first tenant had moved into one of the data centre during the year
under review.

BRI T HREERA0EN —F—tF
EOREAEKESEROEMN RELEHAH
129% (RE-_ZF—LFENRBEBREAEER
FEMRRENERAFERZMEGEH)

URIL AL
RAERROZF ARAER=F—<FNA
TABEBAR EESSHEEETRKNE
TR B — BRATAR -

EEeRAERRBAR TR _ZE—+FNA=H
BINARRNBRREMANBRR  EEETFE+
I A 1D AT R 3k — IR AL AR - SRR B R R A
REAFAES LIRE AR RERSER KES
BAEZHMBRAR ([BRA])) EMEE gk
ZEFRLETREE BREAZAKRBRESZNZ
T—t+tFNA+—HBETRR-

3% ] R
REENEREB T ERRIEATAEZETINA
A BEERREEFRERS MAREEF
REWE B AEEIRRE  KREEEESDN
WHEBHZE—RNFELNAGEBLENEZE_Z
—EFE #1288 BB L 1B I %10.99%3£90.4
BEATe uﬁzﬁéiﬂuigﬂéﬁén BERRIE 2 BT
HE - HEREEIRN _Z—R"FNARM-
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HEBREENR285EET

LA ZE
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AEBHE ZTREEEHEMEZMAEEFLE
H-BAEBeER SR IHRNZ2ME 2 2inEESD
DRERETHE M -F—EamBEF LA
AiTech Tower - #FEBIER ITW ARNEBTLRET
RS U - 58 = S imEUE 0 4 AiTech Tower
2 EKERAEE HEAZNTECREEFREA
Hh—EEEF L
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (Continued)

ERE®|E (&

The revenue derived from data centre premises leasing business slightly
dipped approximately 2.43% or HK$3.5 million, from approximately
HK$144.3 million for FY 2016 to approximately HK$140.8 million for FY
2017, mainly due to provision of special fuel rebates by CLP Power Hong
Kong Limited in January 2017 and lead to reduction in rental related
income.

Property Development

Oon 31 May 2016, the Group had successfully tendered for a land
Situated at Tsing Yi Town Lot No. 190, Sai Shan Road, Tsing Vi, New
Territories (“Tsing Yi land”) from the Hong Kong Government at a
premium of HK$938.88 million. The land parcel is planned for residential
development with an estimated gross floor area of approximately
400,000 square feet. We are progressing well and have completed the
ground investigation works. The general building plan had also been
submitted to the respective government authority for approval. As at the
date of this report, we did not commence any construction work.

During the year under review, there was no revenue recorded for this
business segment.

OUTLOOK

The local construction business has benefited from the strong
momentum of the local estate market, driven by the growth in the
population and housing ownership aspiration of the younger generation.
While the Group is cautiously optimistic about the construction business
in the coming years, there remain challenges in respect of ageing
workforce, chronic shortage of skilled workers and escalating wages. In
view of this, the Group would maintain a prudent strategy in tendering
new construction projects to ensure that all existing and upcoming
construction projects would be completed and delivered on time to our
customers and in accordance with their specifications, and we could
attain a reasonable profit margin from the construction projects at the
same time.

As one of the established market players with proven track record as
a wholesale co-location provider in the data centre industry, we will
continue to invest our data centre infrastructure to strength our market
position and meet the changing needs of the customers. During the
year under review, the first tenant of iTech Tower 2 had moved into
the premise and operated the data centre smoothly. We continued our
endeavours in securing new tenants to occupy the data centre spaces
of iTech Tower 2.

KEBEPUOMEREXRHBOWEH —F—RF
EHNUMIBEBELEM THRE T —LFELD
140.8B & BT M H2.43%H35BE BT B
HRAEENERAFAN T —LF— AEIN
HER R B 5| EH S HEBEKRAR D

UL 9%

RZZB—RFRAA=+—H KKEEII3BIES
BT ZE BRI IEBE BB REMNHFAETK
LB R B R U ER 21905k -3t ([F R L3 ]) o
It + 5+ B3 R R TR A2 [ @ 78 49400,000°F 77 R
MEEER - RARFERR T HBRE KT
BB TE 2B RITE 2 X ABAT AP ETT
B -RAHE A HAIHARAREETE

It 375 0 BRI [l B A R SRR 1S e as o

JE 22

EAORNEEE —RYBREREMASETE T -
AiEMETHINFHERY  AMEETEITF
BB -BARNEEDERKRNZEXBEERSE
B xREBSHN2L RMTARBERNT
BTE EFARRBUR AT - B B Ul AEREH
MRS AR RS IRV IE IR R - URERIRE
KRR SEIE B Al IR T PR 2 RER TR R
- ARBEREMANZEEEESSENE-

ERBBHRLITEREP —REEMES ST
EMIL T MR B RN KPS EERERME
B LA E R R - AR R PII TR IB A - 300
RRETEERE K- REIEE S A - iTech Tower
B ERARCBALIGIEEESIE O o B A
HESNFRHAEMEMBiTech Tower 269 &g
’E‘%ﬁi °©

8 GRAND MING GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED e ANNUAL REPORT 2016/17



CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (Continued)

ER®|E (&

Leveraging on our expertise and experience in the building construction
and property development sector, the Group is dedicated to property
development business. Despite The Hong Kong Monetary Authority has
tightened the limit on bank loans to property developers, it may curb
the recent aggressive bidding of land and help to cool down the land
prices. Hence, based on the Group's financial resources, we will keep on
adopting conservative approach in bidding the Hong Kong Government
land either on our own or through joint venture with other property
developers with a view to enriching the Group’s land bank.

APPRECIATION

I would like to take this opportunity to express my gratitude to the Board
for its brilliant leadership, to the Shareholders for their strong support,
and to the community for their enthusiastic help, and last but not least,
to our staff for their dedicated efforts.

Chan Hung Ming
Chairman

Hong Kong, 1 June 2017
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEBFNWR DN

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group's total revenue for FY 2017 was approximately HK$1,055.7
million, representing an increase of approximately 9.11% or HK$88.1
million from approximately HK$967.6 million for FY 2016. The increase
in revenue was mainly attributable to the commencement of a new
construction project at Kai Tak, Kowloon during the year under review.

Gross profit

The Group’s gross profit increased by approximately 7.57% or
HK$12.8 million, from approximately HK$169.2 million for FY 2016 to
approximately HK$182.0 million for FY 2017. The increase in gross profit
was mainly attributed to the recognition of additional works in several
construction projects during the year under review.

General and administrative expenses

The Group's general and administrative expenses increased by
approximately 48.89% or HK$6.9 million, from approximately
HK$14.1 million for FY 2016 to approximately HK$21.0 million for
FY 2017, primarily due to (i) stamp duty and related professional
fees incurred on the acquisition of two subsidiaries in June 2016 as
further described in the paragraph headed “Material Acquisitions
and Disposals of Subsidiaries and Associated Companies” below; (ii)
increased depreciation on the headquarter properties and leasehold
improvements as the Group had relocated and expanded its office
premise in September 2015 and October 2016, respectively; and
(iii) increase in staff costs as a result of establishment of sales and
marketing team for the property development business segment.

Revaluation of investment properties

The Group recorded fair value gains on investment properties of
approximately HK$82.7 million during FY 2017 as compared to the fair
value gains of approximately HK$285.2 million for the corresponding
period last year. The revaluation gains mainly arise from iTech Tower 2
based on its stage of completion and an office premise held for rental
purpose.

10
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

BEENWR D (&)

Profit for the year

The Group recorded a net profit of approximately HK$203.0 million for
FY 2017, representing a decrease of approximately 49.49% or HK$198.9
million when compared with that of approximately HK$401.9 million for
the same period in 2016. Excluding the fair value gains on investment
properties, the Group recorded an adjusted profit for the year of
approximately HK$120.3 million in FY 2017, representing an increase of
approximately 3.05% or HK$3.6 million when compared to an adjusted
profit for the year of approximately HK$116.7 million in FY 2016.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES
The Group financed its operations and capital expenditure with internal
resources and bank borrowings.

As at 31 March 2017, the Group’s total cash balances were
approximately HK$449.5 million (31 March 2016: approximately
HK$173.2 million), most of which are held in Hong Kong dollars. The
current ratio (defined as current assets divided by current liabilities) of
the Group was 4.89 times (31 March 2016: 1.07 times). The significant
improvement in working capital is mainly attributed to drawdown of a
new syndicated loan of approximately HK$1.9 billion, which was used
to replace certain bank loans due within one year and provided the
Group with extra working capital. The total facility amount of such loan
is HK$2.4 billion and will mature in 36 to 60 months from the drawdown
date.

The Group had total bank borrowings of approximately HK$2,638.0
million as at 31 March 2017 (31 March 2016: approximately HK$1,070.3
million). The gearing ratio (defined as total interest-bearing borrowings
divided by shareholders’ equity) of the Group was approximately
100.1% (31 March 2016: approximately 43.3%). Substantial increase in
gearing ratio was mainly due to drawdown of the abovementioned new
syndicated loan, construction financing for the development of Tsing
Yi land and the borrowings associated with the acquisition of the two
subsidiaries as detailed in the paragraph headed “Material Acquisitions
and Disposals of Subsidiaries and Associated Companies” below.

Interest on bank loans is charged at floating rates. The Group had in
place treasury policy by which interest rate swaps were arranged to
mitigate the exposure to interest rate fluctuations.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

BEENWE DT (&

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 March 2017, bank loans of approximately HK$2,626.0 million
were secured by certain assets of the Group with an aggregate carrying
amount of approximately HK$4,946.1 million.

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK
The Group had no significant exposure to foreign currency risk as
substantially all the Group’s transactions are denominated in Hong Kong
dollars. The Group did not employ any financial instruments for hedging
against foreign exchange exposure.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
Save as disclosed in note 31 to the financial statements, the Group had
no other capital commitments as at 31 March 2017.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
Save as disclosed in note 32 to the financial statements, the Group had
no other contingent liabilities as at 31 March 2017.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

After the end of the reporting period, the directors proposed a final
dividend. Further details are disclosed in the paragraph headed
“Dividends” in the Chairman’s Statement and note 13(a) to the financial
Statements.

Save as disclosed above, there was no significant events that have taken
place subsequent to 31 March 2017 and up to the date of this report.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

In June 2016, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company entered
into provisional agreements with independent third parties to acquire
the entire interests in Eson Development Limited (“Eson”) and Easton
Development Limited (“Easton”) at an aggregate consideration of
HK$261,120,000. Eson and Easton are principally engaged in property
investment business and are holding office premises located at 18th
and 22nd Floor, Railway Plaza, No.39 Chatham Road South, Tsim
Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong, respectively. The acquisitions were
completed on 30 September 2016. Details of the acquisition were set
out in the Company’s announcement dated 7 June 2016.

Save as disclosed above, there was no acquisition or disposal of
subsidiaries and associated companies by the Company during FY 2017.

12
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

BEENWE DT (&

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 March 2017, the Group had a total of 226 (31 March 2016: 167)
employees. The total remuneration cost incurred by the Group for FY
2017 was approximately HK$103.3 million (2016: approximately HK$81.3
million).

The remuneration policy and packages of the Group’'s employees are
periodically reviewed by making reference to the prevailing market
conditions. The components of remuneration packages consist of basic
salary, benefits-in-kind, fringe benefits and contributions to mandatory
provident funds, as well as discretionary bonuses which are determined
according to individual performance of employees.

The emoluments of the Directors were determined with reference to
their duties and responsibilities with the Group as well as the Group’s
performance and reviewed by the remuneration committee of the
Company annually.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD

Except for investments in subsidiaries, the Group did not hold any
significant investment in equity interest in any other company for FY
2017.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS AND
CAPITAL ASSETS

As at the date of this annual report, the Group did not enter into any
agreement in respect of any proposed acquisitions and did not have any
other future plans relating to material investment or capital asset.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRE

The Directors are pleased to present this annual report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for FY 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and
its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the business of building
construction, property leasing and property development. Details of the
principal activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out in note 28 to
the financial statements. There were no significant changes in the nature
of the Group's principal activities during FY 2017.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
The results of the Group for FY 2017 are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss on page 58 of this annual report.

An interim dividend of HK4.0 cents per share was paid on 15 December
2016. The Board recommends payment of a final dividend of HK4.0
cents per share to Shareholders whose names appear on the register
of members of the Company on 3 August 2017. The proposed final
dividend warrants is expected to be dispatched to Shareholders on 11
August 2017.

BONUS ISSUE OF SHARES

The Board proposes a bonus issue on the basis of one bonus share
for every ten shares held to Shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company on 3 August 2017. The relevant
resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting,
and if passed and upon the Stock Exchange granting the listing of and
permission to deal in such new shares, shares certificates of the bonus
shares will be dispatched to Shareholders on 11 August 2017.

The bonus shares will rank pari passu in all respects with the existing
shares in issue from the date of issue except that they will not rank
for the final dividend for the FY 2017. No fractional shares arising from
the bonus issue shall be allotted and fractional entitlements will be
aggregated and sold at such time or times as the Directors shall think fit
for the benefit of the Company.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continueq)
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

In order to determine entitlement of Shareholders to the right to attend
and vote at the forthcoming annual general meeting, the register of
members of the Company will be closed from 21 July 2017 to 26 July
2017, both days inclusive, during which period no share transfer will be
effected. In order to qualify for attending and voting at the forthcoming
annual general meeting, all share transfer documents accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor
Services Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on 20 July 2017.

In order to determine Shareholders who qualify for the proposed final
dividend and bonus shares, the register of members of the Company
will be closed from 1 August 2017 to 3 August 2017, both days inclusive,
during which period no share transfer will be effected. In order to qualify
for the proposed final dividend and bonus shares, all share transfer
documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office
in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen'’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration not later than
4:30 p.m. on 31 July 2017.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year and the outlook of
the Group’s business are provided in the Chairman’s Statement section
from pages 6 to 9 of this annual report. Description of the principal risks
and uncertainties facing the Group can be found in the Chairman’s
Statement, including the financial risks mentioned in the Management
Discussion and Analysis section and note 30 to the financial statements.
Particulars of the events that have occurred since the end of the
reporting period are provided in note 34 to the financial statements.
An analysis of the Group’s performance during the year using financial
key performance indicators is provided in the Financial Highlights and
Management Discussion and Analysis sections of this annual report. All
the above sections form part of this report.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continueq)
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KEY RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS
AND SUPPLIERS

The Group recognises that employees, customers and business partners
are the keys to the sustainable development to the Group. The Group is
committed to building a close and caring relationship with its employees
and business partners, and improving the quality of services and
products to the customers.

Employees are regarded as the most vital and valuable assets of the
Group. The Group ensures that all staff are reasonably remunerated,
regular seminars on safety for specific type of works and activities and
safety induction training are provided for all employees as well as the
subcontractors’ employees.

The Group stays connected with its customers and has ongoing
communication with them through various channels such as physical
meetings, telephone and electronic mail communication to obtain their
feedback and suggestions.

The Group establishes long-term business relationship with the
subcontractors. Through the past dealings with the subcontractors,
the Group has acquired sufficient appreciation of their expertise and
strengths so that it would enable us to maintain our quality standards.

The Group also places effort to build up and maintain good relationship
with various commercial banks as the Group’s businesses are capital
intensive and require on-going funding to maintain continuous growth.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Company endeavours to protect the environment in which it
operates its business. The Group's construction and data centre leasing
segment have established environmental management systems and
were certified by Certification Asia (HK) Limited to be in compliance with
the requirements of ISO 14001:2004.

During FY 2017, there was no material non-compliance in relation
to air pollution, noise control, disposal and emission of construction
wastes. Green office practices are also encouraged in the operation
of the Group's businesses, such as double-sided printing and copying,
setting up recycling bins, sending and presenting corporate documents
or information to the members of the Board in electronic format, and
reducing energy consumption by switching off idle lighting and electrical
appliances.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORT

The “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” of the Company
prepared in accordance with Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”) will
be published within three months after the publication of this annual
report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

During FY 2017, no material non-compliance of the laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the Company was noted. In addition,
discussion on the Company's compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code is included in the Corporate Governance Report.

DONATIONS
Donations made by the Group during the year amounted to nil.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group is set out on
page 5 of this annual report.

FIXED ASSETS

Details of movements in fixed assets (including investment properties
and property, plant and equipment) during the year are set out in note
15 to the financial statements.

BANK LOANS
Details of bank loans of the Group as at 31 March 2017 are set out in
note 22 to the financial statements.

INTEREST CAPITALISED
The amount of interest capitalised by the Group during the year is set
out in note 8(a) to the financial statements.

SHARE ISSUED AND SHARE CAPITAL

During the year, the Company issued 58,658,774 bonus shares without
consideration on the basis of one bonus share for every ten shares then
held.

Details of the Company’s share capital are set out in note 25 to the
financial statements.

BRNE~ A KA IR N

ARRNBMRBE R FTES EmRA ([ EmRA) K
BO7TREN [IRF HEREARE ) BRAFR
RE=EAR R

EAP R YH

RZE—+FEHH HARABEAFENE
AR EEAMERNERBER - LA - A
AEETEEERTINBRADBEECEER
W o

H

sk
AEBEBNRAFELB|ELBK
T 47 0 5 R 22

AEENEE BELABMBHERAFHRSES
Ho

¥l € % e
BEEE (BREREMEALYE BELRE)
RAFENEHFITRN P ERERMEES

BT Bk
AEER -_ZF—tF=A=1+—"RZERTEFN
BB B B TR P 22

& AAL A B
REBNRREEENMeOF B BEN YK HE
M FES(a) °

BT Iy B S AR

RAFERN  ARGEEEFEER TREOERE
— IR AT IR 2 EELA TR (B 351758,658, 7740 AL % ©

RRBPRARZERFH IR B B IRA I FE25

FRHEBEIERAR DT ¢ 2016/17 FEHRE

17
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RESERVES AND DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Details of the movements in reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity on page 62 of this annual report and in note 26(b) to the financial
statements, respectively.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentage of turnover of the Group attributable to the largest
customer and the five largest customers in aggregate are 42.6% and
96.2% respectively.

The percentage of purchases of the Group attributable to the largest
supplier and the five largest suppliers in aggregate are 8.7% and 28.2%
respectively.

None of the Directors, their close associates or any Shareholder (which
to the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the Company'’s
total number of issued shares) had an interest in the five largest
suppliers or customers of the Group.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association (the “Articles”) and there is no restriction against such rights
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata
basis to existing Shareholders.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
annual report were:
Executive Directors Independent
Non-executive Directors

Mr. Tsui Ka Wah

Mr. Kan Yau Wo

Mr. Mok Kwai Pui Bill

Mr. Lee Chung Yiu Johnny

Mr. Chan Hung Ming (Chairman)
Mr. Lau Chi Wah

Mr. Yuen Ying Wai

Mr. Kwan Wing Wo
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Pursuant to Article 84(1) of the Articles, one-third of the Directors for
the time being shall retire from office by rotation at each annual general
meeting, provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement at
least once every three years. It is proposed that Mr. Lau Chi Wah, Mr.
Tsui Ka Wah and Mr. Mok Kwai Pui Bill shall retire from office by rotation
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election as Directors at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of the
Group as of 31 March 2017 are set out on pages 29 to 35 of this annual
report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service agreement
with the Company for an initial term of three years commencing from
9 August 2013, being the listing date of the Company (the “Listing
Date”), and such appointment continued thereafter unless terminated in
accordance with the terms of the service agreement.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has signed a letter of
appointment with the Company for a term of three years commencing
from 9 August 2016, and such appointment may be terminated in
accordance with the terms of the letter of appointment.

Apart from the foregoing, no Director proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract which is not
determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

INDEPENDENCE OF THE INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that
all independent non-executive Directors are independent.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

During the year and up to the date of this annual report, the Company
has in force indemnity provisions as permitted under the relevant
statutes for the benefit of the Directors of the Company. The permitted
indemnity provisions are provided for in the Articles and in the directors
and officers liability insurance maintained for the Group in respect of
potential liability and costs associated with legal proceedings that may
be brought against such Directors.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF DIRECTORS
AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES OR DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 March 2017, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and chief executives in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQ") which (a)
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
or short positions which they are taken or deemed to have such
provisions of the SFO); or (b) were required, pursuant to Section 352
of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein; or (c) were
required, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
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Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) to be notified to the Company — #T :
and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:
Number of
Name of Group ordinary Approximate
member/associated Capacity/Nature shares held percentage of
Name of Director corporation of interest (note 1) shareholding
TEERERAT BHEEBERHA
EEHA HECEE AR B9 HEmtE (7771) REMOBEIL
Mr. Chan Hung Ming The Company Interest of a controlled 434,837,700 (L) 67.39%
corporation (note 2)
PRFLEA A4 ZA/NE] REEE R (22)
Chan HM Company Limited Beneficial owner 1 100%
EnEEA
Mr. Lau Chi Wah The Company Interest of a controlled 48,315,300 (L) 7.49%

corporation (note 3)

BB ERE ZAN/N]
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Note:.

1. The Letter “L" denotes the Directors’ long position in the shares of the
Company or the relevant associated corporation.

2. Mr. Chan Hung Ming holds 100% of the issued share capital of Chan HM
Company Limited, which owns 434,837,700 shares out of the total number
of issued shares of the Company. Therefore, Mr. Chan Hung Ming is
deemed to have the same interest in the Company by virtue of SFO.

3. Mr. Lau Chi Wah holds 100% of the issued share capital of Lau CW
Company Limited, which owns 48,315,300 shares out of the total number
of issued shares of the Company. Therefore, Mr. Lau Chi Wah is deemed to
have the same interest in the Company by virtue of SFO.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or chief executives of the
Company has or is deemed to have any interests or short positions in
the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations as at 31 March 2017.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF THE
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2017, so far as the Directors were aware, the following
persons/entity (not being the Directors or chief executives of the
Company) had, or were deemed to have interests or short positions
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company or any of its
associated corporations which were required to be notified to the
Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or which were
recorded in the register of the Company required to be kept under
Section 336 of the SFO:
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Number of
ordinary Approximate
shares held percentage of
Name of Shareholder Capacity/Nature of interest (note 1) shareholding
BELZERHE
MRIR & By, HEEHE (1) BRESYBEIL
Chan HM Company Limited Beneficial owner 434,837,700 (L) 67.39%
BEH#EAA
Lau CW Company Limited Beneficial owner 48,315,300 (L) 7.49%
EnEAA
Ms. Cheung Shuk Fong Family (note 2) 48,315,300 (L) 7.49%
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Note:.

1. The Letter “L" denotes the person’s/entity’s long position in the shares of
the Company or the relevant Group member.

2. Ms. Cheung Shuk Fong, the spouse of Mr. Lau Chi Wah, is deemed to be
interested in Mr. Lau’s interest in our Company by virtue of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified of any
other relevant interests or short positions in the total number of issued
shares of the Company as at 31 March 2017 which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Interests and Short Positions
of Directors and Chief Executives in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures of the Company and its Associated Corporations” above,
at no time during FY 2017 was the Company or any of its subsidiaries
or any holding company or any subsidiary of the Company’s holding
company, a party to any arrangement that would enable the Directors to
acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate, and none of the Directors or
any of their spouses or children under the age of 18 were granted any
right to subscribe for the equity or debt securities of the Company or
any other body corporate or had exercised any such right.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

Save for their respective interests in the Group, none of the Directors
was interested in any business which competes or is likely to compete
with the businesses of the Group for FY 2017.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During FY 2017, the Group had not entered any transactions which
constituted non-exempt connected transactions within the meaning of
the Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTION,
ARRANGEMENT OR CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No Director or any entity connected with a Director had a material
interest, either directly or indirectly, in any transaction, arrangement
or contract of significance to the business of the Group to which the
Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries or any of its
fellow subsidiaries was a party during or at the end the year.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER’S INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

None of the Company or any of its subsidiaries had entered into any
contract of significance or contract of significance for provision of
services with the Company’s controlling shareholders (“Controlling
Shareholders”) or its subsidiaries during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

DIRECTORS” REMUNERATION
Details of the Directors’ remuneration during the year are set out in note
11 to the financial statements.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING BY
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

A deed of non-competition in respect of the Controlling Shareholders
was entered into on 23 July 2013 (the “Deed of Non-Competition”).
The Controlling Shareholders had confirmed to the Company of their
compliance with the Deed of Non-Competition provided to the Company
during the year.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed and confirmed
that the Controlling Shareholders of the Company had complied with
the Deed of Non-Competition which has been enforced by the Company
in accordance with its terms, and that there was no new opportunity
(as defined in the Prospectus headed “Relationship with Controlling
Shareholders — Non-compete Undertakings”) referred by the Controlling
Shareholders to the Company as provided under the Deed of Non-
Competition.
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PENSION SCHEMES

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF
Scheme”) for all its qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in funds
under the control of trustees. Under the rules of the MPF Scheme, the
employer and its employees are each required to make contributions
to the scheme at rates specified in the rules. During FY 2017, the Group
contributed approximately HK$3.1 million to the aforesaid scheme.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) on 23
July 2013 (the “Adoption Date”). The purpose of the Scheme is to attract
and retain the best quality personnel, to provide additional incentives to
them to promote the long term success of the Group. Pursuant to the
Scheme, the Board may;, at its own discretion, grant options to any full-
time or part-time employee, executives, officers, directors (including
executive, non-executive, and independent non-executive Directors),
consultants, advisors, suppliers, customers, agents and other persons
whom the Board determines have or will have contribution to the Group.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Scheme and any other share option schemes of
the Company must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number
of shares in issue upon the Listing Date, being 40,000,000 Shares (the
“Scheme Limit"). Subject to Shareholders” approval in general meeting,
the Board may () renew this limit at any time to 10% of the shares in
issue as at the date of the approval by the Shareholders in general
meeting; and/or (i) grant options beyond the Scheme Limit to eligible
participants specifically identified by the Board.

The number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company at any time shall
not exceed 30% of the shares in issue from time to time. No options
shall be granted under any schemes of the Company (including the
Scheme) if this will result in the limit being exceeded.
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The total number of shares issuable upon exercise of the options
granted under the Scheme and any other share option schemes of
the Company to each eligible participant in any 12-month period shall
not exceed 1% of the shares in issue. Any further grant of options is
subject to Shareholders” approval in general meeting with such eligible
participant and his associates abstaining from voting.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Scheme at any time during a period as the Board may determine
which shall not exceed 10 years from the date of grant subject to the
provisions of early termination thereof. The Scheme shall be valid and
effective for a period of 10 years commencing from the Adoption Date.

A consideration of HK$1.0 is payable on acceptance of the grant of
an option. Pursuant to the Scheme, the participants may subscribe
for the shares of the Company on exercise of an option at the price
determined by the Board provided that it shall be at least the highest
of: (i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotation sheets on the date of grant, which must be a business
day; (i) the average of the closing prices of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange's daily quotation sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of
the Share.

No options had been granted under the Scheme during the year.
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SHARE AWARD PLAN

The Company adopted a share award plan (the “Share Award Plan” or
the “"SAP") on the Adoption Date. Subject to and in accordance with the
rules of the SAR the Board may make an award of shares to certain
classes of eligible participants as specified in the SAP, as determined
by the Board from time to time on the basis of the Board's opinion as
to the proposed awardee’s contribution and/or future contribution to
the development and growth of the Group. The SAP shall be subject
to the administration of the Board, or such committee or such sub-
committee or person(s) delegated with the power and authority by
the Board to administer the SAP. The shares and other trust fund for
the implementation of the Share Award Plan shall be administered
by a trustee or trustees (the “Share Award Plan trustee”, or the “SAP
trustee”) to be appointed by the Company. Under the SAP the Board
shall determine the eligibility of the eligible participants and the number
of shares to be awarded (the “Awarded Shares”) and notify the SAP
trustee of the making of awards. The SAP trustee shall then set aside
the appropriate number of the Awarded Shares pending the transfer
and vest to the relevant participants out of a pool of shares which shall
comprise of, among others, shares either (1) (i) transferred to it from any
person (other than the Group) by way of gift; or (i) purchased by the SAP
trustee out of the funds received by the SAP trustee by way of gift or
for nominal consideration; (2) subscribed for or purchased by the Share
Award Plan trustee out of the funds allocated by the Board out of the
Group’s resources (“Group’s Contribution”), subject to the terms and
conditions of the rules of the SAP; (3) purchased by the SAP trustee by
utilising any surplus gift contribution, or the net proceeds of the sale of
the relevant nil-paid rights, options or warrants allocated to it in respect
of the Awarded Shares; (4) which remain unvested and revert to the SAP
trustee in accordance with the rules of the SAP
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The SAP trustee may purchase shares on the Stock Exchange at the
prevailing market prices or off the market. In respect of off-market
transactions, purchases shall not be made with any connected person,
nor shall the purchase price be higher than the lower of (1) the closing
market price on the date of such purchase, and (2) the average closing
market price for the five preceding trading days on which Shares of the
Company were traded on the Stock Exchange. At the beginning of each
financial year of the Group, the Board shall determine the maximum
amount of the Group’s Contribution to be allocated to the SAP trustee
(or via a special purpose vehicle which may be established by the SAP
trustee subject to the provisions of the trust deed to be executed by the
Company as settlor and the SAP trustee as trustee, shortly as “Share
Award Plan SPV") during such financial year, provided that the maximum
numbers of Shares which may be awarded for each financial year under
the SAP shall not exceed 10% of the total number of Shares in issue at
the beginning of such financial year. The Share Award Plan trustee may
also subscribe for new Shares at par or at such other subscription price
as instructed by the Board out of the Group’s Contribution if the Board
considers it appropriate to do so. Prior approval from the Company’s
shareholders is not required for the Directors to allot and issue new
Shares under the SAP to the SAP trustee, provided that the Directors
have sufficient unissued shares within the general mandate on hand
subject to certain limitations under the SAP. The Company shall comply
with the relevant listing Rules when granting the Awarded Shares. the
legal and beneficial ownership of the relevant awarded Shares shall
be vested in the relevant selected participant within 10 business days
after the latest of (1) the date specified in the notice of the award given
by the Board to the SAP trustee; and (2) where applicable, the date on
which the condition(s) or performance target(s) (if any) to be attained
by such selected participant as specified in the related notice of award
have been attained and notified to the Share Award Plan trustee by the
Board in writing. Neither the SAP trustee nor Share Award Plan SPV (if so
established and subsisting) shall exercise the voting rights in respect of
the Shares held under trust. The Share Award Plan will remain in force
for a period of 10 years commencing on the Adoption Date.

No Shares had been awarded under the Share Award Plan during the
year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed
or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during FY 2017.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has applied with all the code provisions as set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (“CG Code”) as contained in Appendix 14
to the Listing Rules for the FY 2017. Details are set out in the Corporate
Governance Report on pages 36 to 49.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION
The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to
the Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s securities.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this annual
report, the Company has maintained the prescribed minimum public
float under the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

KPMG resigned as auditor of the Company on 28 January 2016, and BDO
Limited was appointed as auditor of the Company to fill the vacancy
arising from the resignation of KPMG on 28 January 2016. Save as
disclosed above, there was no change in auditor during the past three
years.

The consolidated financial statements for FY 2017 was audited by BDO
Limited who will retire as the Company’s auditor and being eligible, offer
itself for re-appointment. A resolution to this effect shall be proposed at
the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Chan Hung Ming
Chairman

Hong Kong, 1 June 2017
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Details of the biographies of Directors and senior management as of 31
March 2017 are listed as follows:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Hung Ming, aged 63, is our chairman and executive Director.
He is also our controlling shareholder and a director of all subsidiaries
of our Group. Pursuant to Part XV of the SFO, Mr. Chan is interested in
434,837,700 Shares, representing 67.39% of the number of the issued
shares of the Company, as at the date of this annual report.

Mr. Chan is a co-founder of our Group and has participated in the
management of our Group since 1995. He is primarily responsible for
formulating the overall strategic development and direction of the
business development of our Group. He has accumulated over 43 years'
experience in construction and property development field and 9 years'
experience data centre premises leasing business.

Mr. Chan holds a Higher Certificate in Building Technology from the Hong
Kong Polytechnic (now known as the Hong Kong Polytechnic University).

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Chan is not connected with any existing
Directors, senior management, substantial Shareholders or Controlling
Shareholders.

Mr. Lau Chi Wah, aged 52, is our executive Director and chief
executive officer. He is also a director of all subsidiaries of our Group.
Pursuant to Part XV of the SFO, Mr. Lau is interested in 48,315,300
Shares, representing 7.49% of the number of the issued shares of the
Company, as at the date of this annual report.

Mr. Lau is a co-founder of our Group and has participated in the
management of our Group since 1995. He is primarily responsible for
formulating the overall strategic planning of our Group and overseeing
the business development, administrative and compliance matters
of our Group. He had over 28 years of audit, accounting and finance
experience.

Mr. Lau holds a Honour Diploma in Accountancy from the Lingnan
College (now known as the Lingnan University) and Master's Degree
in Professional Accounting from Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He
is a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA").
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Save as disclosed above, Mr. Lau is not connected with any existing
Directors, senior management, substantial Shareholders or Controlling
Shareholders.

Mr. Yuen Ying Wai, aged 54, is our executive Director. He is also a
director of all subsidiaries of our Group. Mr. Yuen joined our Group in
2001 and has participated in the management of our Group since 2007.

Mr. Yuen is responsible for the overall management of the construction
and data centre premises leasing business. He has over 33 years'
experience in quantity surveying and construction project management
and 9 years’ experience in the construction of high tier data centre and
the related leasing matters.

Mr. Yuen holds a Certificate in Civil Engineering Studies from the
Hong Kong Vocational Training Council, a National Certificate in Civil
Engineering Studies from Business & Technician Education Council, a
Higher Certificate in Civil Engineering from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
(now known as the Hong Kong Polytechnic University), and a Diploma in
Surveying from the College of Estate Management in United Kingdom.
He is a member of both the Society of Surveying Technicians and the
Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors.

As at the date of this annual report, Mr. Yuen did not have any interests
or underlying interests in the Shares within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Yuen is not connected with any existing
Directors, senior management, substantial Shareholders or Controlling
Shareholders.

Mr. Kwan Wing Wo, aged 49, is our executive Director and chief
financial officer. He also holds directorship in certain subsidiaries of our
Group. Mr. Kwan joined the Group in 2008 and has participated in the
management of the Group since then.

Mr. Kwan is responsible for the corporate finance, accounting, taxation,
investment and administrative matters of our Group. He has over 26
years' experience in auditing, accounting and finance field. Prior to
joining our Group, Mr. Kwan held a management position in a listed
company in Hong Kong for 12 years and was mainly responsible for
its finance, financial reporting obligations, accounting, taxation and
administrative matters.
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Mr. Kwan holds a Bachelor's degree in Accountancy from the City
University of Hong Kong. He is a fellow of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants of United Kingdom and a member of the HKICPA.

As at the date of this annual report, Mr. Kwan did not have any interests
or underlying interests in the Shares within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO.

Mr. Kwan is not connected with any existing Directors, senior
management, substantial Shareholders or Controlling Shareholders.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Tsui Ka Wah, aged 64, is our independent non-executive Director
since 23 July 2013. He is also the chairman of the remuneration
committee (“Remuneration Committee”) and a member of each of the
audit committee (“Audit Committee”) and the nomination committee
(“Nomination Committee”) of the Company.

Mr. Tsui has 30 years of banking experience with United States and local
banks, and has held various management positions in corporate, retail
and private banking. Currently he holds the position of chief executive
officer of SME Credit Company Limited. He is also an independent
non-executive director of Oriental Explorer Holdings Limited (stock
code: 430), Multifield International Holdings Limited (stock code: 898)
and Southeast Asia Properties & Finance Limited (stock code: 252)
respectively, whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange.

Mr. Tsui holds a Bachelor of Arts Degree and a Master's Degree of
Business Administration from the Chinese University of Hong Kong.

As at the date of this annual report, Mr. Tsui did not have any interests or
underlying interests in the Shares within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO.

Mr. Tsui is not connected with any existing Directors, senior
management, substantial Shareholders or Controlling Shareholders.

Mr. Kan Yau Wo, aged 64, is our independent non-executive
Director since 23 July 2013. He is also the chairman of the Nomination
Ccommittee and a member of each of the Audit Committee and the
Remuneration Committee of the Company.
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Mr. Kan has been working with Fujitsu's group of companies for over 30
years and was appointed as the president in Fujitsu Hong Kong Ltd. in
2007 and then the chief executive officer of Fujitsu’s South China and
Hong Kong Region. Mr. Kan retired from his position in Fujitsu’s group of
companies in 2011.

Mr. Kan graduated from University of Hull in United Kingdom with
Bachelor of Science (First Class Honour) in Computer Studies and
Mathematics.

As at the date of this annual report, Mr. Kan did not have any interests or
underlying interests in the Shares within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO.

Mr. Kan is not connected with any existing Directors, senior
management, substantial Shareholders or Controlling Shareholders.

Mr. Mok Kwai Pui Bill, aged 56, is our independent non-executive
Director since 23 July 2013. He is also the chairman of the Audit
Committee, and a member of each of the Remuneration Committee and
the Nomination Committee of the Company.

Mr. Mok has 29 years’ experience in accounting, finance and banking
in Hong Kong and Mainland China with specific expertise in managing
financial and accounting operations, fund raising, investor relations and
executing corporate strategy. He is the chief financial officer of Fortune
Oil PLC, a company previously listed in the London Stock Exchange. He
is also appointed as an independent non-executive director of PF Group
Holdings Limited, which was listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of
the Stock Exchange (stock code: 8221), on 5 December 2016.

Mr. Mok holds Bachelor of Arts Degree in Business Administration from
the University of Washington in the United States and a Master Degree
in Business Administration from the Seattle University in the United
States. He is a member of the American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the HKICPA respectively.

As at the date of this annual report, Mr. Mok did not have any interests
or underlying interests in the Shares within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO.

Mr. Mok is not connected with any existing Directors, senior
management, substantial Shareholders or Controlling Shareholders.
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Mr. Lee Chung Yiu Johnny, aged 73, is our independent non-
executive Director since 23 July 2013. He is also a member of each of
the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee of the Company.

With over 20 years' experience in the field of architecture, Mr. Lee
worked in several architect firms including as a director from 1995 to
2009. From 2009, Mr. Lee has been working for an architecture company
as a project director.

Mr. Lee graduated from the University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor’s
Degree in Architecture. He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Architects and a registered architect with Architects Registration Board
in Hong Kong. Mr. Lee is also an authorised person within the List of
Architects maintained by the Buildings Department.

As at the date of this annual report, Mr. Lee did not have any interests or
underlying interests in the Shares within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO.

Mr. Lee is not connected with any existing Directors, senior
management, substantial Shareholders or Controlling Shareholders.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Au-Yeung Yiu Wai, aged 59, joined our group in 1997 and is a
project director of our construction business responsible for supervising
our project managers and overseeing the construction matters. He is
also a director of Grand Tech Construction Company Limited. Mr. Au-
Yeung possesses more than 36 years' experience in the construction
industry.

Mr. Au-Yeung holds a Higher Certificate in Civil Engineering from the
Hong Kong Polytechnic (now known as the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University), Bachelor of Science in Building from Brighton Polytechnic
(now known as University of Brighton) and a Diploma in Construction
Management from the Hong Kong Construction Industry Training
Authority. Mr. Au-Yeung is a member of both the Chartered Institute of
Building and the Hong Kong Institute of Construction Managers.

Mr. Ng Kwok Fong, aged 46, joined our group in 1998 and is the
technical director of our construction business in respect of our building
design and construction projects and the Group’s risk officer (“Group
Risk Officer”). He is also a director of Grand Tech Construction Company
Limited.
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Mr. Ng holds a Bachelor of Engineering in Civil Engineering from the
Hong Kong Polytechnic (now known as the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University), a Bachelor of Laws from the University of London and a
Master of Laws Degree from the City University of Hong Kong. With
dual membership in the Institution of Structural Engineers in the
United Kingdom and the Hong Kong Institution of Engineers, Mr. Ng is
a chartered engineer of the United Kingdom as well as a registered
professional engineer of Hong Kong.

Mr. Chan Sik Nin, aged 52, joined our group in 2013 and is the
general manager of our data centre leasing business responsible for
such business development and operation. Mr. Chan possesses more
than 13 years' experience in the data centre industry and managed
to succeed major deals in providing high-tier data centre services for
meeting the stringent requirements from customers. Prior to joining our
Group, he was the Vice President of Sales & Business Development, and
then re-designated as the Vice President of Corporate Development
of iAdvantage Limited, a subsidiary of SUNeVision Holdings Ltd. (stock
code: 8008) whose shares are listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of
the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Chan holds a Master of Business Administration degree from the
University of Canberra, a Diploma in Marketing & International Business
from the Chinese University of Hong Kong, and a Professional Diploma
in Business Studies from the Hong Kong Polytechnic (now known as the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University).

Ms. Ngan King Fung, aged 50, joined our group in December 2016 and
is the director of sales & marketing responsible for all aspects of sales
and marketing of our properties portfolio in the Hong Kong property
market. Ms. Ngan has over 25 years’ extensive experience in sales and
marketing field of the property industry. Prior to joining our group, she
worked for various listed developer companies in Hong Kong and was
responsible for their development’s sales and marketing matters.

Ms. Ngan obtained a Master of Business Administration from University
of Wales.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Leung Wai Chuen, aged 51, is the company secretary of the
Company since July 2013. Mr. Leung has over 26 years' experience in
auditing, accounting, financial management and company secretarial
matters. Prior to joining our Group, he worked for and held senior
positions in various listed companies in Hong Kong and was responsible
for their finance, accounting and company secretarial functions.
Currently he is an independent non-executive director of E Lighting
Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 8222), a company listed on the
Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Leung is a member of the HKICPA, a fellow of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants of the United Kingdom and an
associate of the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators respectively. He
holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Social Sciences from the University of Hong
Kong, a Master's Degree in Business Administration jointly awarded by
the University of Wales and the University of Manchester and a Master’s
Degree in Business (Logistics Management) from the Royal Melbourne
Institute of Technology (now known as RMIT University).

Save as disclosed, each of the senior management and the company
secretary of our Company has not been a director of any other publicly
listed company during the three years preceding the date of this annual
report.
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COMMITMENT TO CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company acknowledges the importance of good corporate
governance practices and procedures, and regards a pre-eminent
board of directors, sound internal controls and accountability to
all shareholders as the core elements of its corporate governance
principles. The Company endeavours to ensure that its businesses are
conducted in accordance with rules and regulations, and applicable
codes and standards.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE
Throughout FY 2017, the Company has applied the principles and
complied with the applicable code provisions set out in the CG Code as
contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

1. Responsibilities of the Board
The Board is primarily responsible for management of the Group,
including the responsibilities of formulating business strategies,
directing and monitoring the Group's development. Apart from its
statutory responsibilities, the Board is also required to approve
the Group's strategic development plan and major investments;
review the Group’s financial performance; identify principal risks
of the Group’s business and ensure adequate systems of risk
management and internal control. The Board also delegates
certain responsibilities to various board committees which have
been established by the Board to deal with different aspects of the
Company's affairs.

The day-to-day operations and administration are delegated to the
management of the Group under the leadership of the executive
Directors.

2. Board Composition
The Board currently comprises eight members, as detailed below:
Executive Directors Independent
Non-executive Directors

Mr. Tsui Ka Wah

Mr. Kan Yau Wo

Mr. Mok Kwai Pui Bill

Mr. Lee Chung Yiu Johnny

Mr. Chan Hung Ming (Chairman)
Mr. Lau Chi Wah

Mr. Yuen Ying Wai

Mr. Kwan Wing Wo
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The biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 29 to
35 of this annual report. There is no financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationship among members of the Board.
A list of Directors and their roles and functions has been published
on the Company’s website.

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy with the aim
of achieving diversity on the Company’s Board. The Company
recognises the benefits of having a diverse Board, and sees
diversity of perspectives at the Board level as essential in
achieving a sustainable and balanced development. In designing
the Board’'s composition, Board diversity has been considered
from a number of aspects, including but not limited to gender,
age, educational background, professional experience, skills,
knowledge, industry experience and expertise. All Board
appointments are based on meritocracy, and candidates will be
considered against a variety of criteria, having due regard for the
benefits of diversity on the Board.

Currently, the Board comprises Directors with diverse backgrounds
and/or extensive expertise in corporate management, with over
50% of the Directors possessing professional qualifications.

All executive Directors have served the Group for over five years
and all independent non-executive Directors were appointed with
effect from the Listing Date. The term of office of all independent
non-executive Directors has been fixed for a specific term of
not more than three years. The Board is subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at the Company’s annual general meeting
in accordance with the Articles.

The Company has complied Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules and
met the requirement of Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules of at least
one-third of the members of the Board being independent non-
executive Directors. In addition, Mr. Mok Kwai Piu Bill, one of
the independent non-executive Directors, has the appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise as required under Rule 3.10(2) of the
Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
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3. Board and Board Committee Meetings 3. EHREREFZRETEHR
The Board's attendance in the general meetings, board meetings RZE—tFEHANESHE 2 RESH
and board committee meetings during FY 2017 are as follows: EEEeRRLTESRRNREIIIET
Meetings Attended/Held
ERHERYBY
Annual
Audit Remuneration  Nomination General
Board  Committee  Committee  Committee Meeting

EZE ENZEE FMEEE REZEE RRBFAS

Executive Directors iTEE

Mr. Chan Hung Ming BRI EAE 5/5 - - - 111
Mr. Lau Chi Wah AFESSE 5/5 - - - 11
Mr. Yuen Ying Wai RERBRELE 5/5 - - - 111
Mr. Kwan Wing Wo Bk A5 5/5 - - - 111

Independent Non-Executive BUFHTES

Directors

Mr. Tsui Ka Wah RERERE 5/5 2/2 212 1" N

Mr. Kan Yau Wo BRAEE 5/5 2/2 212 1" N

Mr. Mok Kwai Pui Bill REREAE 5/5 2/2 212 1" N

Mr. Lee Chung Yiu Johnny TRBRE 5/5 2/2 212 11 111
4.  Conlflict of Interest 4. %5 9H %€

If a Director has a potential conflict of interest in a matter being HNEEENEESH TFTEENETERFTEE

considered in the board meeting, he will abstain from voting. M mERE AREARERRA - BFmER

Independent non-executive Directors with no conflict of interest BBV ERTESHERSREIREEANR

will be present at meetings dealing with such conflict of interest BREEIR -

issues.

EE YT AN GRIY T

U1

Directors” and Officers’ Liability Insurance

U1

The Company has appropriate and sufficient insurance coverage AAFIEREERSABERTREBES
relating to directors’ and officers’ liability to indemnify the FEAMRE UBEESERSREEE 8
Directors and senior management against any potential liabilities EEARETRMERAR R EBEERNEES
arising from the Company’'s business activities for which such f£o

Directors and senior management may be held liable.
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6. Directors’ Time Commitments and Trainings

The Company has received confirmation from each Director that
he had sufficient time and attention to the affairs of the Company
for the year. The Directors have disclosed to the Company the
number and nature of offices they held in Hong Kong or overseas
listed public companies or organisations and other significant
commitments, with the identity of the public companies and
organisations and an indication of the time involved. They are
reminded to notify the Company in a timely manner of any
changes of such information. All Directors are encouraged to
attend the Board meeting and board committee meeting in
person. For the Directors and committee members who are
unable to attend the meeting, participation through electronic
means is arranged and available.

All Directors, namely, Mr. Chan Hung Ming, Mr. Lau Chi Wah,
Mr. Yuen Ying Wai, Mr. Kwan Wing Wo, Mr. Tsui Ka Wah, Mr. Kan
Yau Wo, Mr. Mok Kwai Pui Bill and Mr. Lee Chung Yiu Johnny,
had participated in continuous professional development with
respect to directors duties, relevant programmes and seminars,
in compliance with code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code. A record
of the Directors’ participation in such programmes is kept by
the Company. Reading materials on the latest developments or
updates in connection to the Group's businesses, accounting,
regulatory and corporate governance aspects were provided
to the Directors. They also received monthly financial highlights
provided by the management.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of
chairman and chief executive should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual.

The chairman and the chief executive officer are currently two separate
positions held by Mr. Chan Hung Ming and Mr. Lau Chi Wah respectively
with clear distinction in responsibilities.

Mr. Chan Hung Ming, being the chairman, is responsible for the
management and leadership of the Board to formulate overall strategies
and business development directions for the Group, to ensure that
adequate, complete and reliable information is provided to all Directors
in a timely manner, and to ensure that the issues raised at the Board
meetings are explained appropriately.
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Mr. Lau Chi Wah, being the chief executive officer, is responsible for
the daily operations of the Group and the implementation of business
policies, objectives and plans as formulated and adopted by the Board,
and is accountable to the Board for the overall operation of the Group.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties. Given below are the main corporate governance duties of the
Board:

(i)  to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

(i) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements,

(i) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees of the Group
and the Directors; and

(iv) to review the Company's compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the Remuneration
Committee, Audit Committee and Nomination Committee, for
overseeing particular aspects of the Group’s affairs and discharging
its functions. Sufficient resources are provided to enable the Board
committees to undertake their specific role.

1. Remuneration Committee
The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 23 July
2013 with written terms of reference in compliance to Rule 3.25 of
the Listing Rules. The written terms of reference are posted on the
Company’s website and the website of the Stock Exchange.
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The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include,
among others, (i) making recommendation to the Board on
the policy and structure for Directors and senior management;
(i) reviewing and approving the management’'s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goal and
objective; (iii) making recommendation to the Board on the
remuneration packages of executive Directors and senior
management and remuneration of non-executive Directors;
and (iv) ensuring none of the Directors determine their own
remuneration. The Remuneration Committee consists of all four
independent non-executive Directors. The current members are
Mr. Tsui Ka Wah (chairperson), Mr. Kan Yau Wo, Mr. Mok Kwai Pui
Bill and Mr. Lee Chung Yiu Johnny.

During FY 2017, the Remuneration Committee held two meetings
to review the remuneration policy and structure of the Directors
and senior management, review and make recommendations to
the Board on the annual emoluments of the Directors and other
related matters.

Details of remuneration of Directors and senior management
are set out in note 11 and 12(b) to the financial statements
respectively.

Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee on 23 July 2013
with written terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.21 of
the Listing Rules. The terms of reference of Audit Committee were
revised to include risk management functions with effect from
1 April 2016. The revised written terms of reference have been
posted on the Company’s website and the website of the Stock
Exchange.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee include, among others,
() making recommendation to the Board on the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of external auditors; (i) reviewing
the financial statements, risk management and internal control
systems; and (iii) overseeing the financial reporting and the
effectiveness of the internal control procedures. The Audit
Committee consists of all four independent non-executive
Directors. The current members are Mr. Mok Kwai Pui Bill
(chairperson), Mr. Tsui Ka Wah, Mr. Kan Yau Wo, and Mr. Lee
Chung Yiu Johnny. Mr. Mok holds the appropriate professional
qualifications as required under Rules 3.10(2) and 3.21 of the
Listing Rules.

No
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The Audit Committee held two meetings during FY 2017. The
committee members also met in separate session with the
external auditor without the presence of executive Directors.

The work of the Audit Committee during the year included:

(i) reviewed the audited financial statements and annual results
announcement for the year ended 31 March 2016;

(i) reviewed the unaudited financial statements and interim
results announcement for the six months ended 30
September 2016; and

(i reviewed the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group's
risk management and internal controls system based on the
assessments made by the Group Risk Officer and the review
report undertaken by the internal auditor of the Group for
the FY 2017 (the "Internal Auditor”).

The Group's audited financial statements and annual results
announcement for the FY 2017 were reviewed by the Audit
Committee on 1 June 2017.

Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 23 July
2013 with written terms of reference in compliance with A.5 of
Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules. The written terms of references
are posted on the Company's website and the websites of the
Stock Exchange.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to review the
structure, size and composition of the Board on regular basis; to
identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members;
to assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors; and to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors. The Nomination
Committee consists of all four independent non-executive
Directors. The current members are Mr. Kan Yau Wo (chairperson),
Mr. Tsui Ka Wah, Mr. Mok Kwai Pui Bill, and Mr. Lee Chung Yiu
Johnny.

GRAND MING GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED e ANNUAL REPORT 2016/17

(O8]

ERZBERAFENTHEERE

() BHEE-ZZ-—R"F=-A=+—H1L
FENKERUBREREFEER
5

(i FBHABE-_ZT-R"FAA=THILERX
BEANAEEZM BRI LT HRSE
NGRS

(i) RIEEERBRAEIENTERAE
B REREETAD ([REPEATED] ) B H A
BEHE  BHAEER T —+FE
2 ERERE RN RS EY)
MR -

AEE —_T-LFENEEZWBRELE
FREANMEHBRZEERN T —LF X
A—H%EHM-

&r‘u‘f.&iiﬁ
ARBIRZZE—=FLA=Z+=HAKIIRESR
3 ILE”Lm%EﬁIJBﬁﬁ*wLm 5 ASELH
TEAHMEGE -FHRETERESED AN
NE B T A L A, o

%E%KEWZEKH&TE;‘EHM HEFEZ

B ABRAK : MEEBABEERAE

FEZZNE FIRBUIFNTESE 2B

E_r“'&?f%%é&i%&ﬁ%?@%ﬂﬂ&

ZoRAZESHNBBIIRNITES

%Hﬁk ﬁff)ﬂiaz%%?iﬂﬁ‘ﬁi(%%) R
ERE RERAENTREREE-



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

N 'M\Aﬁﬂ: (,”5

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during FY 2017 to
review the size and composition and diversity of the Board by
taking into account the necessary balance of skills and experience
appropriate for the requirements of the business development of
the Group and for effective leadership.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in the Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as its code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions. Having made specific enquiries to all Directors
by the Company, all Directors confirmed their compliance with the
required standard set out in the Model Code throughout FY 2017.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Directors acknowledge that it is their responsibility to prepare
the financial statements that give a true and fair view of the Group's
financial position and of its financial performance and cash flow
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, the
Companies Ordinance (Cap 622) and the applicable disclosures
provisions of the Listing Rules. The management provides information
and explanation to the Board to enable it to make an informed
assessment of the financial and other decisions by the Board.
Accordingly, appropriate accounting policies are selected and applied
consistently, and judgements and estimates made by the management
for financial reporting purpose are prudent and reasonable.

The responsibilities of the external auditor for the consolidated financial
statements of the Group are set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report
on pages 50 to 57 of this annual report.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration in respect of audit and non-audit services provided
by the Company’s external auditor to the Group during FY 2017 are
approximately HK$815,000 (2016 HK$760,000) and HK$234,000 (2016:
HK$577,000) respectively. The non-audit services mainly include the
review of the Group’s interim financial report and tax reporting services.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board has the overall responsibility for maintaining a sound and
effective system of internal controls and risk management within
the Group, and reviewing its operational adequacy and effectiveness
through the Audit Committee.

The Board has identified the top risks of the Group and determined how
much risk the Board is willing to take to achieve the Group's strategic
objectives. In addition, the Group established a risk management
system based on the “Three Lines of Defence” model. Each business
unit is required to identify and manage risks on a day-to-day basis as
the first line of defence. The Group Risk Officer, acting as the second
line of defence, provides oversight of the risk management activities
of the first line of defence. The Internal Auditor, as the third line of
defence, provides independent and objective assurance on the overall
effectiveness of the internal control and risk management system.

Each business unit, as risk owners, identifies, evaluates, and monitors its
own risks, and reports such risk assessment to the Group Risk Officer on
a monthly basis. The Group Risk Officer consolidates the results of the
risk assessments and presents to the Board the principal risks facing the
Group and the risk changes at each regularly scheduled meeting.

The Internal Auditor conducted reviews on systems of risk management
and internal controls of the Group over financial, operational and
compliance control according to the internal audit plan endorsed by
the Audit Committee. During the process of review, the Internal Auditor
identified internal control deficiencies and weakness, and proposed
recommendations for improvements and remedial actions with
management. The results of internal control review and management’s
remedial actions have also been reported to the Audit Committee at
each scheduled meeting.

The Audit Committee had reviewed the adequacy and effectiveness
of the Group’s risk management and internal controls system based
on the assessments made by the Group Risk Officer and the review
reports undertaken by the Internal Auditor. During the review, the Audit
Committee also considered the adequacy of resources, qualifications
and experience of staff of the Group's accounting and financial reporting
function and their training programs and budgets.
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The Board, through the review by the Audit Committee, considers that
the Group’s internal control and risk management system is effective
and adequate. No significant areas of concern that may affect the
financial, operational, compliance controls, and risk management
functions of the Group have been identified. The systems are designed
to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or 10ss.

INSIDE INFORMATION

The Company has adopted and implemented its own disclosure policy
aiming to provide a general guide to the directors and management of
the Company in handling of confidential information and/or monitoring
of information disclosure pursuant to applicable laws and regulations in
compliance with the Listing Rules and SFO.

The disclosure policy provides the procedures and internal controls
for the handling and dissemination of inside information by publication
of the announcement to the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange on a timely basis to enable the public, namely Shareholders,
institutional investors, potential investors and other stakeholders of the
Company to access the latest information of the Group, unless such
information fall within the safe harbours with the SFO.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Company considers that effective communication with
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and investor
understanding of the Group’s business performance and strategies. The
Company also recognises the importance of transparency and timely
disclosure of corporate information, which will enable Shareholders and
investors to make informed investment decisions.

The general meetings of the Company are expected to provide a forum
for communication between the Board and Shareholders. The chairman
of the Board as well as chairmen of the board committees and, in their
absence, other members of the respective committees are available
to answer questions at shareholder meetings. The Company’s external
auditor is also invited to attend the annual general meeting to answer
questions about the conduct of the audit and the preparation and
content of the Independent Auditor’s Report.
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To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a website
at www.grandming.com.hk, where information and updates on the
Group’s business developments and operations, financial information,
corporate governance practices and other information are available for
public access.

The Company has established a shareholders’ communication policy
which is posted on the Company's website and will review it on a
regular basis to ensure its effectiveness.

SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS

1. Convening Extraordinary General Meetings (“EGM”)
The following procedures for Shareholders to convene an EGM of
the Company are prepared in accordance with the Articles:

(i) ~ One or more Shareholders (“Requisitionist(s)”) holding, at the
date of deposit of the requisition, not less than one tenth
of the paid up capital of the Company having the right of
voting at general meetings, shall have the right, by written
notice, to require an EGM to be called by the directors for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition.

(i) Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or
the company secretary of the Company by post to the
Company’s headquarter in Hong Kong at 19/F, Railway Plaza,
39 Chatham Road South, Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong,
or by email to info@grandming.com.hk.

(i) The EGM shall be held within two months after the deposit
of such requisition.

(iv) If the Board fails to proceed to convene the EGM within
21 days of such deposit, the Requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the Requisitionist(s) as a
result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the
Requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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2.

Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals at Shareholders’
Meetings

(i)

(if)

Proposal for election of a person other than a Director as a
Director:

A shareholder may propose a person other than a retiring
Director (“Candidate”) for election as a Director at a
general meeting by lodging the following documents at
the headquarter of the Company in Hong Kong or the
Company's branch share registrar and transfer office in
Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services limited, at level 22,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen'’s Road East, Hong Kong:

(@ a written notice (“Proposal Notice”) of the intention
to propose the Candidate for election as a Director,
which must (i) state the information of the Candidate
as required by Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules,
which is available on the Stock Exchange's website
(www.hkex.com.hk) and (ii) must be signed by
Shareholder; and

(b) a written notice (“Consent Notice”) by the Candidate,
which must (i) indicate his/her willingness to be
elected as a Director and consent to the publication
of his/her personal information as required by Rule
13.51(2) of the Listing Rules; and (ii) must be signed by
the Candidate.

The Proposal Notice and the Consent Notice shall be lodged
for a period of at least 7 clear days commencing no earlier
than the day after the despatch of the notice of the general
meeting and ending no later than 7 clear days before the
date of such general meeting.

Other Proposals:

If a Shareholder wishes to make other proposals (the
“Proposal(s)”) at a general meeting, he/she may lodge
a written request, duly signed, at the head office of the
Company in Hong Kong.

2.

I
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(if)
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The notice period to be given to all the Shareholders for
consideration of the Proposal raised by the Shareholder
concerned at the general meeting varies according to the
nature of the Proposal as follows:

(1) Notice of not less than 21 clear days and not less
than 20 clear business days in writing if the Proposal
requires approval in an annual general meeting of the
Company.

(2)  Notice of not less than 21 clear days and not less
than 10 clear business days in writing if the Proposal
requires approval by way of a special resolution in an
extraordinary general meeting of the Company.

(3) Notice of not less than 14 clear days and not less
than 10 clear business days in writing if the Proposal
requires approval by way of an ordinary resolution in
an extraordinary general meeting of the Company.

o

Procedures for Directing Shareholders’ Enquiries to the
Board

Shareholders may send their enquiries in writing with their
detailed contact information to the company secretary of the
Company or the Board either by:

()  Post to the Company’s headquarter in Hong Kong at 19/F,
Railway Plaza, 39 Chatham Road South, Tsim Sha Tsui,

Kowloon, Hong Kong; or

(i Email to info@grandming.com.hk
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS
During FY 2017, the Company did not amend its constitutional
documents.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary supports the chairman, the Board and the board
committees by ensuring good information flow and Board policy and
procedures are followed. The company secretary is an employee of the
Company and is appointed by the Board. The company secretary reports
to the chairman and chief executive officer. All directors may call upon
him for advice and assistance at any time in respect of his duties. The
company secretary obtained a practitioner’s endorsement of The Hong
Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and has taken no less than 15
hours of relevant professional training in compliance with the Rule 3.29
of the Listing Rules. The biographical details of the company secretary
are shown on page 35 of this annual report.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT
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Tel

|IBDO

TEE © +852 2218 8288
{8H : +852 2815 2239

: +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

25 Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central

Hong Kong
FEETHER1115RE
kL2518

www.bdo.com.hk

To the shareholders of Grand Ming Group Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Grand
Ming Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on pages 58 to 151, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March
2017, the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
cash flow statement for the year then ended, and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
March 2017, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAS") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's “Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants” (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. The key audit matter identified in our audit is
valuation of investment properties and recognition on contract revenue
and costs.

Valuation of investment properties

Investment properties mainly consist of two high-tier data centres,
namely iTech Tower and iTech Tower 2 (the “Data Centres”). As
disclosed in note 15 to the financial statements, the carrying value of
the Group's investment properties amounted to HK$3,586,600,000 as at
31 March 2017 representing 64.7% of the Group’s total assets. During
the year ended 31 March 2017, an increase in fair values of investment
properties were HK$82,723,000, representing 40.7% of the Group's profit
for the year.

As disclosed in note 15(a) to the financial statements, an independent
firm of qualified professional valuers (the “Valuers”) was engaged to
perform the valuation and the discounted cash flow method of the
income approach was used to determine the fair value of the Data
Centres. Details of the valuation approach are disclosed in the note
5(@) to the financial statement. This method involves the making of
assumptions, which involve judgements, including estimated market
rents, stabilised occupancy rates, terminal capitalisation rates as well as
discount rates.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (Continued)

BYRBE®RE (&)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continuea)

Valuation of investment properties (Continued)

our responses:

Our procedures in relation to assessing the appropriateness of valuation
of investment properties included:

- Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the
Valuers;

- Performing analysis on the reasonableness of the prospective
cash flows input to evaluate the results on the valuation;

- Using auditor’s expert to assist in assessing the valuation
methodology and key assumptions used by the Valuers;

- Assessing the appropriateness and consistency of the use of the
valuation methodology with relevant accounting requirements and
industry norms; and

- Evaluating the reasonableness of key assumptions applied in
the valuation, in particular capitalisation rates, by comparing
them with historical rates and available market data, taking into
consideration comparability with the assistance of our internal
valuation specialists.

Recognition on contract revenue and costs

As disclosed in note 7 to the financial statements, revenue derived from
building construction for the year ended 31 March 2017 amounted to
HK$912,789,000, representing 86.5% of the Group's revenue.

Contract revenue is recognised over the period of the contract by
reference to the stage of completion, which is established by reference
to the construction works certified by independent surveyors. Contract
costs are recognised as an expense by reference to the percentage
of completion at the end of the reporting period and the forecasted
costs to completion of the contract. Details of the Group’s accounting
policy is disclosed in note 4(k) and 4(s)(i) to the financial statements. This
recognition method involves the making of assumptions, which involve
judgements, including estimated percentage of work performed and the
reasonableness and accuracy of forecasted costs to complete.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)

BYBRBE®RE (&)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Recognition on contract revenue and costs (Continued)

Our responses:

Our procedures in relation to assessing the appropriateness of revenue
recognition on building construction and related costs included:

- Examining the terms and conditions of all key contracts and
variation orders, such as contract sum, construction period,
performance obligations of the Group, payment schedule,
retention etc;

- Validating the stage of completion adopted by management to the
position set out in the certificate issued by independent surveyors,
including the certified contract work and variation orders;

- Evaluating the accuracy and reasonableness of total budgeted
costs, by benchmarking against the historical costs and profit
margins of completed projects; assessing the ratio of cost
incurred to budgeted costs with reference to stage of completion,
and interviewing the project managers for assessing the
reasonableness of the cost estimations; and

- Testing the controls of the Group over its process to record
contract revenue and costs, including review and approval
procedures on the preparation of project certificates, progress
reports and payments.

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises Corporate Information, Financial Highlights,
Five-Year Financial Summary, Chairman’s Statement, Management
Discussion and Analysis, Report of the Directors, Biographies of
Directors and Senior Management, Corporate Governance Report (but
does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon), which we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s
report, and the Environmental, Social and Governance Report, which is
expected to be made available to us after that date.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not and will not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (Continued)

BYRBE®RE (&)

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT
(Continued)

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information identified above
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed on the other
information that we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

When we read the Environmental, Social and Governance Report, if we
conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required
to communicate the matter to the directors, and take appropriate action
considering our legal rights and obligations.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial

reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the directors in
discharging their responsibility in this regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)

BYBRBE®RE (&)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with the terms of our engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAS, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

J identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (Continued)
BYRBMKRE (&)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in @ manner that achieves fair
presentation.

obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance
of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)

BYRBE®RE (&

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Wan Che Bun
Practising Certificate Number P05804

Hong Kong, 1 June 2017
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
meEBEmER

For the year ended 31 March 2017 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

HE_ZT—tF=A=+—81FE ABTIR)

2017 2016
—E—tF —ZE—RF
Notes $'000 $'000
k=3 Fr T
Revenue Uk & 7 1,055,741 967,579
Direct costs BEMAE (873,692) (798,340)
Gross profit EF 182,049 169,239
Other income and gain/(loss), net Hipg A F s, (E18) 7 4,936 5,046
General and administrative expenses — B RITHFAX (21,047) (14,136)

Increase in fair value of WEYE 2 N FELE N
investment properties 15 82,723 285,195
Profit from operations B HEF 248,661 445,344
Finance costs B 7% B AR 8@) (21,343) (18,234)
Profit before taxation RRBEATER 8 227,318 427,110
Income tax expenses Frig iz 9 (24,298) (25,181)
Profit for the year ARE R 203,020 401,929
HK cents HK cents
AL el
(Restated)
(&%)

Earnings per share BRAEF

- Basic and Diluted —ERk# 14 31.5 62.3

Details of dividends payable to owners of the Company attributable to

the profit for the year are set out in note 13(a).

The notes on pages 65 to 151 form part of these financial statements.

BRAFEENENTAREEES ANKRSFIEH

M FE13(0) ©

FOSESTEFHM BN AMBHRE — 80
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
ERBERHEMAZERKER

For the year ended 31 March 2017 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
HE_Z—tF=A=1T—HIFE (LUETIIT)

2017 2016
—E—tF ZT—RF
Notes $'000 $'000
k=3 Fr T
Profit for the year &g 203,020 401,929
Other comprehensive income for the FEHMt2EKHE 10
year
Items that may be reclassified subsequently & a] £ E #7482
to profit or 10Ss: PEamiEE -
Available-for-sale securities: TT LEFS:
Change in fair value NEEES = (1,361)
Reclassification adjustment for impairment — J&{E 518 & 5
loss transferred to profit or loss HAESEEER = 2,191
. ~ N 830 _
Cash flow hedges: fﬁéiﬁ%%ﬁlﬂ :
Change in fair value, net of tax NHEZES  HRBIE 1,175 (3,262)
Realisation of cash flow hedging reserve ReneyhHEEER 6,305 -
Reclassification adjustment for gain BeRem T ARz
on cash flow hedging instrument BENMOBEEER
transferred to profit or loss = (3,988)
,,,,,,, 7480 (7250
Other comprehensive income for the year, FEHMEmE K
net of tax meg 7,480 (6,420)
Total comprehensive income FEZHEHKEAEE
for the year 210,500 395,509
The notes on pages 65 to 151 form part of these financial statements. FOSEISTEFTH M BN AT BRE —2pH -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

mE MR R AR

As at 31 March 2017 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

RZZE—tF=A=+—H (UETIHIR)

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RHF
Notes $'000 $'000
it T Tt
Non-current assets kRBEE
Fixed assets EEE
— Investment properties — B 15 3,586,600 3,290,000
— Property, plant and equipment —ME WEREE 15 260,844 128,765
3,847,444 3,418,765
Deferred tax assets EETIREE 9c) 2,549 45
Derivative financial instruments PTEERT A 23 571 -
Other financial assets HEthemEE 16 13,884 12,809
3,864,448 . 3431619
Current assets REBEE
Properties under development for sales HEENEREPYE 18 992,697 -
Gross amount due from customers EWEFAHNTIEER
for contract work 17 49,397 18,815
Trade and other receivables JE AR SR R EL th B U SR TB 79 184,781 206,185
Restricted and pledged deposits ZBRH R B EBF R 20 59,158 53,616
Cash and bank balances Be MRTER 20 390,300 119,565
1676333 398,181
current liabilities REBAE
Gross amount due to customers ENREFAEHIRERE
for contract work 17 = 17,292
Trade and other payables FETRR SR N H Ath FE - 5RI8 21 218,172 219,795
Bank loans RITER 22 118,016 125,546
Tax payable FEfI AR IR 9(c) 6,932 7,815
. 343120 370,448
Net current assets REBEEFE - 1333213 27733
Total assets less current liabilities HWEERRBARS 5,197,661 3,459,352
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)
mEMBRRE (&)

As at 31 March 2017 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
RZB—tF=A=+—H (LUETIIR)

2017 2016

—E—+HF —E—RF

Notes $'000 $'000

it T T
Non-current liabilities kRBEE

Bank loans RITER 22 2,520,010 944,709

Deferred tax liabilities EEMIBAE 9c) 42,556 32,386

Derivative financial instruments TESMITA 23 142 8,530

2562708 985,625

NET ASSETS EEFE 2,634,953 2,473,727
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BARGEE

Share capital fi& 7 25 6,452 5,866

Reserves ] 2,628,501 2,467,861

TOTAL EQUITY 48 R 75 2,634,953 2,473,727

On behalf of the Board REESS
Chan Hung Ming Lau Chi wah
BR 7L BA B5E
Director Director
EF EF
The notes on pages 65 to 151 form part of these financial statements. FBOSEISTEFTH M BN A Bk —# 5 o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
REERSER

For the year ended 31 March 2017 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BHE_ZT—tF=A=+—HILFE CABTIIR)

Share Share  Fair value Hedging  Retained Total
capital premium reserve reserve profits equity
k& REE ATERE 0 HPRE  REEW L £
Notes $'000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
izt i T Fr i i i
At 1 April 2015 RZBE-HEWA-H 4,848 100,889 (830) 128 2,014,874 2,119,909
Changes in equity for 2016: “E-RERREE:
Profit for the year FEET - - - - 401929 401,929
Other comprehensive income HEn 2 AW 100) - - 830 (7.250) - (6,420)
Total comprehensive income for the year FEREMEEE - - 80 (7250 401929 395509
Issuance of new shares under the bonus issues B RETHETZHRG 2500 1018 (1,018) - - - -
Interim dividend declared and paid in respect of 2R KX MAFE M+ &
the current year 136) - - - - (21,330) (21,330)
Final dividend approved in respect of HEBRE—FERRERE
the previous year 130) - - - - (20,361) (20,361)
At 31 March 2016 and 1 April 2016 RZB-REZA=Zt+-HEK
—E-X~¥NA-H 5,866 99,871 - (7,122) 2,375,112 2,473,727
Changes in equity for 2017: “E-LEREREH:
Profit for the year EGAT - - - - 203,020 203,020
Other comprehensive income 2Bl 100) - - - 7,480 - 7,480
Total comprehensive income for the year FEEEMGEE - - - 748 203020 210500
Issuance of new shares under the bonus issues BBARETHET 2 HRG 290 586 (586) - - - -
Interim dividend declared in respect of BEERRZAAFENPEREE
the current year 13) - - - - (25,810) (25,810)
Final dividend approved in respect of BEBRE—FENRERE
the previous year 130) - - - - (23,464) (23,464)
At 31 March 2017 R-E-t£=f=1-H 6,452 99,285 - 358 2,528,858 2,634,953
The notes on pages 65 to 151 form part of these financial statements. FOSEISTEFTH N BN A Bk —# 5 o
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

RERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2017 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
HE-T—+tF=A=+—81tFE ABTIR)

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
Notes $'000 $'000
i3 Fr FT
Operating activities ReEEH
Profit before taxation R B4 A s 227,318 427,110
Adjustments for: AT EIBIEL TR
- Interest income —FEHA 7 (199) (574)
— Finance costs — IR AN 8@ 21,343 18,234
— Depreciation —E 8(c) 5,248 2,881
- Dividend income from unlisted securities ~ —3F F T B F I B UA 7 (875) (816)
— Changes in fair value of investment —REYELTEE
properties 75 (82,723) (285,195)
— Gain on disposal of property, —HEWME -BER
plant and equipment B W (3) -
- Impairment loss/(reversal of impairment ~ —EWBR T 2 BIE,
loss) on trade receivables (EIERE) 8(c) 203 ®)
- Net unrealised gain on derivative —TESRM T EREIR
financial instruments W e R 58 7 - (1,559)
— Net gain on cashflow hedging —RREZHEHSERN
instrument reclassified from equity Be s hlzsF58 7 - (3,988)
— (Reversal of impairment)/impairment of —AHEERESH 2
available-for-sale securities (E#RE),RE 7 (1,075) 2,191
— Net foreign exchange (gain)/loss —BH (M) BB 7 (6) 199
Changes in working capital: EEEGEE:
- Decrease in trade and other receivables — — & Uk BR 2k K H b e Uk 18 g > 21,201 26,455
- (Increase)/decrease in gross amount due  —EREFE A4 TIEEHE
from customers for contract work (1#m),/mA (23,567) 59,687
- (Decrease)/increase in trade and other — JE AT BR 3R N HL A JE 5 BB
payables G,/ (548) (17,803)
— (Decrease)/increase in gross amount due to —fERI B AK TIREH
customers for contract work CRA) /& m (17,292) 10,592
— Expenditure on properties under —HEENERTPYERS
development for sales (968,026) -
Cash (used in)/generated from g (A EENES
operations (819,001) 237,406
Tax paid ERBIE (23,210) (20,859)
Net cash (used in)/generated from KETESH (A EEW
operating activities FEE&FE (842,211) 216,547
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (Continueq)

RERTRER (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2017 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

HE_ZT—tF=A=+—81FE ABTIR)
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
Notes $'000 $'000
k=3 Fr FT
Investing activities RETH
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BB E W% = & & #E (4,661) (3,930)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - BB &
plant and equipment RESFIE 6 -
Payments for acquisition of subsidiaries AT R B A 24 (261,120) -
Expenditure on investment properties WEYERS (62,490) (131,149)
Interest received BUF B 199 574
Dividends received from unlisted investments EH&Z?Fiﬁ B H AR S 875 816
Net cash used in investing activities RETHFANESFE - (327,191 (133,689)
Financing activities mMEEE
Proceeds from bank loans RITERATB A 4,422,723 1,253,446
Repayment of bank loans BERITER (2,856,952) (1,259,212)
Increase in pledged deposits BB BTN (5,536) (7,831)
Interest and other borrowing costs paid BRI B R B b FRAK AR (70,824) (39,567)
Dividends paid B E (49,274) (41,691)
Net cash generated from/(used in) BMETEEES, (AN
financing activities ReFHE - 1440137 (94,855)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and ReRBELZEEY
cash equivalents ®BimSCRD) BE 270,735 (11,997)
cash and cash equivalents FUNEERREEEY
at the beginning of the year 119,565 131,562
cash and cash equivalents FRASRRSEEY
at the end of the year 20 390,300 119,565

The notes on pages 65 to 151 form part of these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g E e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREFRIZEERSN - LABTTSITR)

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

Grand Ming Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) are principally
engaged in the business of building construction, property leasing
and property development. The Company was incorporated in the
Cayman lIslands as an exempted company with limited liability
on 14 August 2012 under the Companies Law, Cap.22 (Law 3 of
1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The
Company's shares were listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 9
August 2013.

The addresses of the registered office and principal place
of business of the Company are disclosed in the corporate
information to the annual report.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 28.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(@) Adoption of amendments to HKFRSs — first effective on
1 April 2016
In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA which are
relevant to and effective for the Group’s financial statements
for annual year beginning on 1 April 2016:

HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements 2012-2014
Cycle

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to HKAS 16 and  Clarification of Acceptable
HKAS 38 Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation

Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements

Investment Entities: Applying the
Consolidation Exception

Amendments to HKAS 27

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28

The adoption of these amendments has no material impact
on the Group's financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continueq)

MR (F)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREFRIZEERSN - LA TSI TR)

2.

66

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continuea)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not

(b)

yet effective

The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially relevant to the
Group’s financial statements, have been issued, but are not
yet effective and have not been early adopted by the Group:

HKFRSS (Amendments)

Amendments to HKAS 7

Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKAS 40

Amendments to HKFRS 2

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKFRS 15

HKFRS 16
Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Annual Improvements
2014-2016 Cycle
Disclosure Initiative '

Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets
for Unrealised Losses '
Transfer of Investment Property 2

Classification and Measurement
of Share-Based Payment
Transactions 2

Financial Instruments 2

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers 2

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Clarifications to
HKFRS 15) 2

Leases®

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture *

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2017

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2019

4 The amendments were originally intended to be effective for

periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016. The effective
date has now been deferred/removed. Early application of the
amendments continue to be permitted.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continueq)
ISR ()

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREFRIZEERSN - LABTTSITR)

2.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective (Continued)
Amendments to HKAS 7 - Disclosure Initiative

The amendments introduce an additional disclosure that will
enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in
liabilities arising from financing activities.

Amendments to HKAS 12 - Recognition of Deferred
Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses

The amendments relate to the recognition of deferred tax
assets and clarify some of the necessary considerations,
including how to account for deferred tax assets related to
debt instruments measured at fair value.

Amendments to HKAS 40 - Transfer to Investment
Property

The amendments clarify that, to transfer to or from,
investment properties, there must be a change in use. A
change in use would involve (a) an assessment of whether
a property meets, or has ceased to meet, the definition of
investment property; and (b) supporting evidence that a
change in use has occurred.

Amendments to HKFRS 2 - Classification and
Measurement of Share-Based Payment Transactions

The amendments provide requirements on the accounting
for the effects of vesting and non-vesting conditions on
the measurement of cash-settled share-based payments;
share-based payment transactions with a net settlement
feature for withholding tax obligations, and a modification
to the terms and conditions of a share-based payment that
changes the classification of the transaction from cash-
settled to equity-settled.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continueq)
B ISR (4F)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREFRIERBAN - LABTTER)

2.

68

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continuea)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial assets. Debt instruments
that are held within a business model whose objective is
to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows
(the business model test) and that have contractual terms
that give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding
(the contractual cash flow characteristics test) are generally
measured at amortised cost. Debt instruments that meet the
contractual cash flow characteristics test are measured at
fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI")
if the objective of the entity’s business model is both to
hold and collect the contractual cash flows and to sell the
financial assets. Entities may make an irrevocable election
at initial recognition to measure equity instruments that
are not held for trading at FVTOCI. All other debt and equity
instruments are measured at fair value through profit or loss
("FVTPL").

HKFRS 9 includes a new expected loss impairment model
for all financial assets not measured at FVTPL replacing the
incurred loss model in HKAS 39 and new general hedge
accounting requirements to allow entities to better reflect
their risk management activities in financial statements.

HKFRS 9 carries forward the recognition, classification and
measurement requirements for financial liabilities from
HKAS 39, except for financial liabilities designated at FVTPL,
where the amount of change in fair value attributable to
change in credit risk of the liability is recognised in other
comprehensive income unless that would create or enlarge
an accounting mismatch. In addition, HKFRS 9 retains the
requirements in HKAS 39 for derecognition of financial
assets and financial liabilities.

2.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continueq)
ISR ()

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREFRIZEERSN - LABTTEITR)

2.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective (Continued)
HKFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The new standard establishes a single revenue recognition
framework. The core principle of the framework is that an
entity should recognise revenue to depict the transfer of
promised goods or services to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods and services. HKFRS 15
supersedes existing revenue recognition guidance including
HKAS 18 — Revenue, HKAS 11 — Construction Contracts and
related interpretations.

HKFRS 15 requires the application of a 5-step approach to
revenue recognition:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4. Allocate the transaction price to each
performance obligation

Step 5: Recognise revenue when each performance

obligation is satisfied

HKFRS 15 includes specific guidance on particular revenue
related topics that may change the current approach taken
under HKFRS. The standard also significantly enhances the
qualitative and quantitative disclosures related to revenue.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continueq)
MR (F

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREFRIZERBAN - LA TTER)

2.

/0

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continuea)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts
with customers (Clarifications to HKFRS 15)

The amendments to HKFRS 15 included clarifications on
identification of performance obligations; application of
principal versus agent; licenses of intellectual property; and
transition requirements.

HKFRS 16 - Leases

HKFRS 16, which upon the effective date will supersede
HKAS 17 “Leases” and related interpretations, introduces
a single lessee accounting model and requires a lessee to
recognise assets and liabilities for all leases with a term
of more 12 months, unless the underlying asset is of low
value. Specifically, under HKFRS 16, a lessee is required to
recognise a right-of-use asset representing its right to use
the underlying leased asset and a lease liability representing
its obligation to make lease payments. Accordingly, a lessee
should recognise depreciation of the right-of use asset
and interest on the lease liability, and also classifies cash
repayments of the lease liability into a principal portion and
an interest portion and presents them in the statement
of cash flows. Also, the right-of-use asset and the lease
liability are initially measured on a present value basis. The
measurement includes non-cancellable lease payments and
also includes payments to be made in optional periods if the
lessee is reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend
the lease, or to exercise an option to terminate the lease.
This accounting treatment is significantly different from the
lessee accounting for leases that are classified as operating
leases under the predecessor standard, HKAS 17.

In respect of the lessor accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially
carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS
17. Accordingly, a lessor continues to classify its leases as
operating leases or finance leases, and to account for those
two types of leases differently.

2.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continueq)
MR EE (F

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREFRIZEERSN - LABTTSITR)

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 - Sale or
contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments clarify the extent of gains or losses to be
recognised when an entity sells or contributes assets to its
associate or joint venture. When the transaction involves a
business the gain or loss is recognised in full, conversely
when the transaction involves assets that do not constitute
a business the gain or loss is recognised only to the extent
of the unrelated investors’ interests in the joint venture or
associate.

The Group is not yet in a position to state whether these
new pronouncements will result in substantial changes to
the Group's accounting policies and financial statements.

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a)

Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs") and Interpretations (hereinafter collectively
referred to as the "HKFRS") and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. In addition, the
financial statements include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

Basis Of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost basis except for certain properties and
financial instruments, which are measured at fair values as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
("HK$"), which is the same as the functional currency of the
Company.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continueq)
ISR (4F)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREFRIERBAN - LA TTER)

4.

/2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”). Inter-company transactions and balances
between group companies together with unrealised profits
are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of impairment on the asset
transferred, in which case the loss is recognised in profit or
loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the dates of acquisition or up
to the dates of disposal, as appropriate. Where necessary,
adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with
those used by other members of the Group.

Changes in the Group's interests in subsidiaries that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group's interest
and the non-controlling interest are adjusted to reflect the
changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any
difference between the amount by which the non-controlling
interest is adjusted and the fair value of the consideration
paid or received is recognised directly in equity and
attributed to owners of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continueq)
B ISR ()

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREFRIZEERSN - LA TSI TR)

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuea)
(@) Basis of consolidation (Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or
loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between
(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest and
(i) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-
controlling interest. Amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to the subsidiary are
accounted for in the same manner as would be required if

the relevant assets or liabilities were disposed of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary is the amount of those interests
at initial recognition plus such non-controlling interest’s
share of subsequent changes in equity. Total comprehensive
income is attributed to such non-controlling interests even if
this results in those non-controlling interests having a deficit

balance

(b) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. When assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other parties) are

considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only to

the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continueq)
MR (F

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREFRIZERBAN - LA TTER)

4.

/4

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuea)

(b)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

Changes in the Group's interest in a subsidiary that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the
amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests within
consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative interests,
but no adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or 10ss
is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with
a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former subsidiary at the date when
control is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial
asset or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of
an investment in an associate or a joint venture.

In the Company's statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
losses (see note 4())(ii)), unless the investment is classified as
held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified
as held for sale).

Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of:

()  the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree and the fair value of the Group's
previously held equity interest in the acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets
and liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

When (i) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised
immediately in profit or 10ss as a gain on a bargain purchase.

4.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continueq)
MR EE (F

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREFRIZEERSN - LABTTSITR)

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

Goodwill (Continuead)

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill arising on a business combination is
allocated to each cash-generating unit, or groups of cash
generating units, that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination and is tested annually for
impairment (see note 4())).

On disposal of a cash-generating unit during the year, any
attributable amount of purchased goodwill is included in the
calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

Other investments in securities

The Group’s and the Company’s policies for investments
in securities, other than investments in subsidiaries, are as
follows:

Investments in securities are initially stated at fair value,
which is their transaction price unless it is determined
that the fair value at initial recognition differs from the
transaction price and that fair value is evidenced by a
quoted price in an active market for an identical asset or
liability or based on a valuation technique that uses only
data from observable markets. Cost includes attributable
transaction costs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continueq)
B ISR (4F)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREFRIZEERSN - LA TSI TR)

4.

/6

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuea)
(d) Other investments in securities (Continuead)

Other investments in securities, being those held for
non-trading purposes, are classified as available-for-
sale securities. At each end of the reporting period the
fair value is remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss
being recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the fair value reserve.
As an exception to this, investments in equity securities
that do not have a quoted price in an active market for an
identical instrument and whose fair value cannot otherwise
be reliably measured are recognised in the statement
of financial position at cost less impairment losses (see
note 4(j)). Dividend income from equity securities and
interest income from debt securities calculated using the
effective interest method are recognised in profit or 10ss in
accordance with the policies set out in notes 4(s)(iv) and 4(s)
(v), respectively. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from changes in the amortised cost of monetary items, such
as debt securities, are recognised directly in profit or loss.

When the investments are derecognised or impaired (see
note 4())), the cumulative gain or loss recognised in equity
is reclassified to profit or loss. Investments are recognised/
derecognised on the date the Group commits to purchase/

sell the investments or they expire.

(e) Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at
fair value. At the end of reporting period the fair value is
remeasured. The gain or loss on remeasurement to fair value
is recognised immediately in profit or loss, except where
derivatives qualify for cash flow hedge accounting, in which
case recognition of any resultant gain or loss depends on the

nature of the item being hedged (see note 4(f)).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continueq)
ISR ()

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREFRIZEERSN - LABTTSITR)

4.

(f)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuea)

Hedging

Cash flow hedges

Where a derivative financial instrument is designated as a
hedge of the variability in cash flows of a recognised asset
or liability or a highly probable forecast transaction or the
foreign currency risk of a committed future transaction, the
effective portion of any gains or losses on remeasurement of
the derivative financial instrument to fair value is recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated separately
in equity in the hedging reserve. The ineffective portion of
any gain or loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

If a hedge of a forecast transaction subsequently results
in the recognition of a non-financial asset or non-financial
liability, the associated gain or loss is reclassified from equity
and is included in the initial cost or other carrying amount of
the non-financial asset or liability.

If a hedge of a forecast transaction subsequently results in
the recognition of a financial asset or a financial liability, the
associated gain or loss is reclassified from equity to profit or
loss in the same period or periods during which the asset
acquired or liability assumed affects profit or loss (such as
when interest income or expense is recognised).

For cash flow hedges, other than those covered by the
preceding two policy statements, the associated gain or loss
is reclassified from equity to profit or loss in the same period
or periods during which the hedged forecast transaction
affects profit or loss.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated
or exercised, or the entity revokes designation of the
hedge relationship but the hedged forecast transaction is
still expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss at that
point remains in equity until the transaction occurs and it
is recognised in accordance with the above policy. If the
hedged transaction is no longer expected to take place, the
cumulative unrealised gain or loss is reclassified from equity
to profit or loss immediately.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continueq)
B ISR (4F)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREFRIZERBAN - LA TTER)

4.

/8

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuea) 4.

(g)

Properties under development for sales

The cost of properties under development for sales
comprises specifically identified cost, including the
acquisition cost of land, aggregate cost of development,
materials and supplies, wages and other direct expenses, an
appropriate proportion of overheads and borrowing costs
capitalised. Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price less estimated costs of completion and costs to
be incurred in selling the properties.

Fixed assets

(i)  Investment properties
Investment properties are land and/or buildings which
are owned or held under a leasehold interest (see
note 4(i)) to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation. These include land held for a currently
undetermined future use and property that is being
constructed or developed for future use as investment

property.

Investment properties are stated at fair value,
unless they are still in the course of construction
or development at the end of the reporting period
and their fair value cannot be reliably measured at
that time. Any gain or loss arising from a change
in fair value or from the retirement or disposal of
an investment property is recognised in profit or
loss. Rental income from investment properties is
accounted for as described in note 4(s)(ii).

When the Group holds a property interest under
an operating lease to earn rental income and/or
for capital appreciation, the interest is classified
and accounted for as an investment property on a
property-by-property basis. Any such property interest
which has been classified as an investment property
is accounted for as if it were held under a finance
lease (see note 4(i)), and the same accounting policies
are applied to that interest as are applied to other
investment properties leased under finance leases.
Lease payments are accounted for as described in
note 4().
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continueq)
MR EE (F

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREFRIZEERSN - LABTTSITR)

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuea)

(h)

Fixed assets (Continued)
(i)  Other property, plant and equipment

Other property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses
(see note 4().

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal
of an item of property, plant and equipment are
determined as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are
recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement or
disposal.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated so as
to write off their cost or valuation net of expected
residual value over their estimated useful lives on a
straight-line basis. The useful lives, residual value and
depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at each end of the reporting period. The
useful lives are as follows:

Buildings 50 years
Plant and machinery 3-5 years
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3-5 years
Motor vehicles 5 years

Where parts of an item of furniture, fixtures and other
fixed assets have different useful lives, the cost of the
item is allocated on a reasonable basis between the
parts and each part is depreciated separately. Both the
useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are
reviewed annually.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continueq)
MR (F

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREFRIZERBAN - LA TTER)

4.

30

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuea) 4.

(1)

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific
asset or assets for an agreed period of time in return for
a payment or a series of payments. Such a determination
is made based on an evaluation of the substance of the
arrangement and is regardless of whether the arrangement
takes the legal form of a lease.

(i)  Classification of assets leased to the Group
Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held
under finance leases. Leases which do not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the Group are classified as operating leases, except
where property held under operating leases that
would otherwise meet the definition of an investment
property is classified as an investment property on
a property-by-property basis and, if classified as an
investment property, is accounted for as if held under
a finance lease (see note 4(h)(i)).

(i) Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of
the pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased
asset. Lease incentives received are recognised in
profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net
lease payments made. Contingent rentals are charged
to profit or loss in the accounting period in which they
are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating
lease is amortised on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease term except where the property is
classified as an investment property (see note 4(h)(i)).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continueq)

MR (A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB RIEERRSN  ABTTEITR)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(j)  Impairment of assets
(i) Impairment of investments in securities and

other receivables
Investments in equity securities and other current
and non-current receivables that are stated at cost
or amortised cost or are classified as available-
for-sale securities are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period to determine whether there is
objective evidence of impairment. Objective evidence
of impairment includes observable data that comes to
the attention of the Group about one or more of the
following loss events:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinguency in interest or principal payments,

- it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor; and

- a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of an investment in an equity instrument below

==

its cost.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continueq)
ISR (4F)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREFRIERBAN - LA TTER)

4.

382

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuea) 4.

)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i) Impairment of investments in securities and
other receivables (Continued)
If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is
determined and recognised as follows:

- For trade and other receivables carried at
cost, the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the carrying amount of the
financial asset and the estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the current market rate of
return for a similar financial asset where the
effect of discounting is material. Impairment
losses for equity securities carried at cost are not
reversed.

- For trade and other receivables and other
financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition of these
assets), where the effect of discounting is
material. This assessment is made collectively
where these financial assets share similar risk
characteristics, such as similar past due status,
and have not been individually assessed as
impaired. Future cash flows for financial assets
which are assessed for impairment collectively
are based on historical l0ss experience for assets
with credit risk characteristics similar to the
collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be linked objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or
loss. A reversal of an impairment loss shall not
result in the asset’s carrying amount exceeding
that which would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continueq)
MR E (F

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREFRIZEERSN - LABTTSITR)

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuead)
Impairment of assets (Continued)

)

(M)

Impairment of investments in securities and

other receivables (Continued)

- For available-for-sale securities, the cumulative
loss that has been recognised in the fair value
reserve is reclassified to profit or loss. The
amount of the cumulative loss that is recognised
in profit or loss is the difference between the
acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment
and amortisation) and current fair value, less
any impairment loss on that asset previously
recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss
in respect of available-for-sale equity securities
are not reversed through profit or loss. Any
subsequent increase in the fair value of such
assets is recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Impairment losses in respect of available-for-sale
debt securities are reversed if the subsequent
increase in fair value can be objectively related
to an event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised. Reversals of impairment losses
in such circumstances are recognised in profit or
loss.

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for impairment
losses recognised in respect of trade receivables
included within trade and other receivables, whose
recovery is considered doubtful but not remote. In
this case, the impairment losses for doubtful debts
are recorded using an allowance account. When
the Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the
amount considered irrecoverable is written off against
trade debtors directly and any amounts held in the
allowance account relating to that debt are reversed.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously charged
to the allowance account are reversed against the
allowance account. Other changes in the allowance
account and subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off directly are recognised in profit
or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continueq)
MR (F

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREFRIFEERSN - LA TSI TR)

4.

34

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuead)
Impairment of assets (Continued)

()

(ii)

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
identify indications that the following assets may
be impaired or, except in the case of goodwill, an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists
or may have decreased:

- fixed assets (other than properties carried at
revalued amounts);

- goodwill; and

- investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s
statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’'s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill, the
recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or
not there is any indication of impairment.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. Where an asset does not generate cash
inflows largely independent of those from other
assets, the recoverable amount is determined for
the smallest group of assets that generates cash
inflows independently (i.e. a cash-generating
unit).

4.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continueq)
MR E (F

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREFRIZEERSN - LABTTSITR)

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of assets (Continued)
Impairment of other assets (Continued)

)

(ii)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit
or loss if the carrying amount of an asset, or
the cash-generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-generating
units are allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the cash-
generating unit (or group of units) and then, to
reduce the carrying amount of the assets in the
unit (or group of units) on a pro rata basis, except
that the carrying value of an asset will not be
reduced below its individual fair value less costs
of disposal (if measurable) or value in use (if
determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not
reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’'s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to profit or loss in
the year in which the reversals are recognised.
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B ISR (4F)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREFRIZERBAN - LA TTER)

4.

36

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()

Impairment of assets (Continuea)

(iii) Interim financial reporting and impairment
Under the Listing Rule, the Group is required to prepare
an interim financial report in compliance with HKAS
34, Interim financial reporting, in respect of the first six
months of the financial year. At the end of the interim
period, the Group applies the same impairment testing,
recognition, and reversal criteria as it would at the end
of the financial year (see notes 4()(i) and (ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in
respect of goodwill, available-for-sale equity securities
and unquoted equity securities carried at cost are
not reversed in a subsequent period. This is the case
even if no loss, or a smaller loss, would have been
recognised had the impairment been assessed only
at the end of the financial year to which the interim
period relates. Consequently, if the fair value of an
available-for-sale equity security increases in the
remainder of the annual period, or in any other period
subsequently, the increase is recognised in other
comprehensive income and not profit or loss.

Construction contracts

Construction contracts are contracts specifically negotiated
with a customer for the construction of an asset or a group
of assets, where the customer is able to specify the major
structural elements of the design. The accounting policy for
contract revenue is set out in note 4(s)(i). When the outcome
of a construction contract can be estimated reliably,
contract costs are recognised as an expense by reference
to the stage of completion of the contract at the end of
the reporting period. When it is probable that total contract
costs will exceed total contract revenue, the expected 10ss is
recognised as an expense immediately. When the outcome
of a construction contract cannot be estimated reliably,
contract costs are recognised as an expense in the period in
which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continueq)
MR EE (F

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREFRIZEERSN - LA TSI TR)

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k)

Construction contracts (Continued)

Construction contracts in progress at the end of the
reporting period are recorded at the net amount of costs
incurred plus recognised profit less recognised losses and
progress billings, and are presented in the statement of
financial position as the “Gross amount due from customers
for contract work” (as an asset) or the “Gross amount due
to customers for contract work” (as a liability), as applicable.
Progress billings not yet paid by the customer are included
under “Trade and other receivables”. Amounts received
before the related work is performed are included under
“Trade and other payables”.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair
value and thereafter stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less allowance for impairment of
doubtful debts (see note 4())(i), except where the receivables
are interest-free loans made to related parties without any
fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting would
be immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated
at cost less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts. If
collection of trade and other receivables is expected in one
year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business
if longer), they are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated
at amortised cost with any difference between the amount
initially recognised and redemption value being recognised
in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings, together
with any interest and fees payable, using the effective
interest method.
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ISR (4F)
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(BREFRIFEERSN - LA TSI TR)

4.

38

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuea)

(n)  Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities measured in
accordance with note 4(r)(), trade and other payables are
subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost. Trade and other payable are classified as
current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less
(or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If

not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

(0) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
in hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
having been within three months of maturity at acquisition.

(p) Employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present values.

(@ Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts
of tax are recognised in other comprehensive income or

directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period, and any

adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continueq)
MR E (F

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREFRIZEERSN - LABTTSITR)

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuea)

()

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and
unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities and all deferred tax assets, to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either in
the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss
arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or
forward. The same criteria are adopted when determining
whether existing taxable temporary differences support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax
losses and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a period,
or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the
initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part of
a business combination), and temporary differences relating
to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case
of taxable differences, the Group controls the timing of
the reversal and it is probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse in the
future.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continueq)
B ISR (4F)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREFRIZERBAN - LA TTER)

4.

90

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

e}

Income tax (Continued)

Where investment properties are carried at their fair value
in accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 4(h)
(i), the amount of deferred tax recognised is measured using
the tax rates that would apply on sale of those assets at
their carrying value at the end of the reporting period unless
the property is depreciable and is held within a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all of
the economic benefits embodied in the property over time,
rather than through sale. In all other cases, the amount of
deferred tax recognised is measured based on the expected
manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount
of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow the related tax benefit to be
utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that
it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against
deferred tax liabilities, if the Group or the Company has the
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and the following additional conditions
are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Group or the Company intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continueq)
MR EE (F

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREFRIZEERSN - LA TSI TR)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(@) Income tax (Continued)

in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled
or recovered, intend to realise the current tax
assets and settle the current tax liabilities on a
net basis or realise and settle simultaneously.

() Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent
liabilities

(1)

Financial guarantee issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the
issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments
to reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (the
“holder”) for a loss the holder incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the
fair value of the guarantee is initially recognised as
deferred income within trade and other payables.
The fair value of financial guarantees issued at the
time of issuance is determined by reference to fees
charged in an arm’s length transaction for similar
services, when such information is obtainable, or is
otherwise estimated by reference to interest rate
differentials, by comparing the actual rates charged
by lenders when the guarantee is made available with
the estimated rates that lenders would have charged,
had the guarantees not been available, where reliable
estimates of such information can be made. Where
consideration is received or receivable for the issuance
of the guarantee, the consideration is recognised in
accordance with the Group’s policies applicable to
that category of asset. Where no such consideration
is received or receivable, an immediate expense is
recognised in profit or loss on initial recognition of any
deferred income.
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4.

92

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuea)

(r)  Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent
liabilities (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

GRAND MING GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED e ANNUAL REPORT 2016/17

Financial guarantee issued (Continuea)

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised
as deferred income is amortised in profit or 10ss
over the term of the guarantee as income from
financial guarantees issued. In addition, provisions
are recognised in accordance with note 4(r)(ii) if
and when (i) it becomes probable that the holder
of the guarantee will call upon the Group under the
guarantee, and (i) the amount of that claim on the
Group is expected to exceed the amount currently
carried in trade and other payables in respect of that
guarantee i.e. the amount initially recognised, less
accumulated amortisation

Other provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group or the
Company has a legal or constructive obligation arising
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material, provisions
are stated at the present value of the expenditure
expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits
iS remote.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continueq)
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREFRIZEERSN - LABTTSITR)

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuea)

(s)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue
and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is
recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(i)  Contract revenue
When the outcome of a construction contract can be
estimated reliably, revenue from a fixed price contract
is recognised using the percentage of completion
method.

When the outcome of a construction contract cannot
be estimated reliably, revenue is recognised only to the
extent of contract costs incurred that it is probable will
be recoverable.

(i) Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over
the periods covered by the lease term, except where
an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the use of the
leased asset. Lease incentives granted are recognised
in profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate
net lease payments receivable. Contingent rentals
are recognised as income in the accounting period in
which they are earned.

(iij) Rental related income
Rental related income is recognised on an accrual
basis.

(iv) Dividends
Dividend income from unlisted investments is
recognised when the Group’s right to receive payment
is established.

(v) Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.
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4.

94

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(t)  Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the end of reporting period. Exchange gains and losses

are recognised in profit or loss.

(u) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for
its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of
that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period

in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of
a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the
asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of
borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially
all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for

its intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.

(v) Related parties

(@ A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is

related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel

of the Group or the Group's parent.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continueq)
B ISR ()

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREFRIZEERSN - LA TSI TR)

4.

(V)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties (Continuead)
(b)  Anentity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)  The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group.

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the Group's parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continueq)
MR (F

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREFRIFEERSN - LA TSI TR)

4.

96

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(w) Segment reporting
Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group's
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments
have similar economic characteristics and are similar in
respect of the nature of products and services, the nature
of production processes, the type or class of customers,
the methods used to distribute the products or provide
the services, and the nature of the regulatory environment.
Operating segments which are not individually material may
be aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, the directors
are required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors
that are considered to be relevant. Actual results differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future periods.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continueq)
MR E (F

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREFRIZEERSN - LABTTSITR)

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continuea)

(a)

Valuation of investment properties and investment
properties under development

As described in note 15 investment properties and
investment properties under development are stated at fair
value based on the valuation performed by an independent
firm of professional valuers.

In determining the fair value of investment properties, the
valuers have used a method of valuation which involves,
inter-alia, certain estimates including appropriate discount
rates, terminal capitalisation rates and expected future
market rents. In relying on the valuation report, management
has exercised its judgement and is satisfied that the method
of valuation is reflective of the current market conditions.

Investment properties under development are valued by
estimating the fair value of such properties as if they were
completed in accordance with the relevant development
plan and then deducting from that amount the estimated
costs to complete the construction, financing costs and a
reasonable profit margin.

Construction contracts

As explained in policy notes 4(k) and 4(s)(i), revenue and
profit recognition on an uncompleted project is dependent
on estimating the total outcome of the construction
contract, as well as the work done to date. Based on
the Group’s recent experience and the nature of the
construction activities undertaken by the Group, the Group
makes estimates at the point at which it considers the work
is sufficiently advanced such that the costs to complete and
revenue can be reliably estimated. As a result, until this point
is reached the amounts due from customers for contract
work as disclosed in note 17 will not include profit which the
Group may eventually realise from the work done to date. In
addition, actual outcomes in terms of total costs or revenue
may be higher or lower than estimated at the end of the
reporting period, which would affect the revenue and profit
recognised in future years as an adjustment to the amounts
recorded to date.

5.

[5A) 92 €7 it P B B il A W TR Y

TR (2
() WEWRLBERPEEYFEME

ERREBIZERER AT ¢ 2016/17 FERE

FANHEE15FT - REMERERD KR
BYMEDENBL EXAEREL D
HERAFEIIR.

RETFEREME L TER  (HERMATR
RW{ETES R (BREE)E TR
it BREEMRRE  RIRER
ERBEHRRTSES - B BIKEZ
HEREHESITEEHE X EAHE
AT RBRE R

BRPREMETEBEAZETME
A THEMETHE  BNZEYED
RIEA AR R &R T A MR TA 2
REVEFT A - BRE R K & R A o

A

AN P TEAK) K2 A(S) (VP it - 3 K ST K IR
B ey e Ks M R BURR H iz A
MBERNA RSB EITH IR
RIFA S B 0T B i M R R BETT
MBEEBOME  AEE[BAERR
TRERD T Maer] SHfhET 5T
AN e Mg 2 B0 B P G o (LUt FEE B RZ
R R A - AR P A K TR (1
ME17FRE) ST 8 RRAKE KK
AEESBEETHIRZRNEN - 1t
S BRAMAR A S s Y B IR A R AT g
BRFUERHERRNMET  $EFE
RARRFERIERICTHARZENG
B 1 i 58 O Mkt % 0k A

97



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continueq)
MR (F

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREFRIZEERSN - LA TSI TR)

5.

98

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY 5.

SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

(c) Impairment of trade receivables
The Group evaluates whether there is any objective
evidence that trade receivables are impaired, and estimates
allowances for doubtful debts as a result of the inability
of the debtors to make required payments. The Group
bases the estimates on the ageing of the trade receivables
balance, credit-worthiness of the customer and historical
write-off experience. If the financial condition of the debtors
were to deteriorate, actual write-offs would be higher than
estimated.

SEGMENT REPORTING 6.

The Group determines its operating segments based on the
reports reviewed by the chief operating decision-maker that are
used to make strategic decisions.

The Group has three reportable segments. The segments are
managed separately as each business offers different products
and services and requires different business strategies. The
following summary describes the operations in each of the
Group's reportable segments:

- Construction: this segment constructs residential buildings,
commercial buildings and data centres for external

customers and for group companies.

- Property leasing: this segment leases data centres and office
premises to generate rental income.

- Property development: this segment develops residential
unit for sale.

GRAND MING GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED e ANNUAL REPORT 2016/17

LR R VAN VHEENT

EERW (#)

() MR W Rk ok i
AEEFERTEENEERERER
FENCRFURRE - B R ER AT
{E R ARTE I SR A O R AR = 2R
AR AR R K A AR MO BR S AT - B
B 15 B M A B 1R st - M1
BADHBARRRIE - EEAMBEES
A E

g1 b e
AR EEEBEEREAKEENHHET
{1 SR BB R TE AR A ) B o

AEBE=HEAREIA -FESHBESE
BIRETANERERE  FETRNES
K MIEL BB - A T R A L E
BABRD A ET

—  RBEUSB/IINEFREEARRE
EEEET BEEFREEF L

—  WEEE: HSHHBRERLRRA
EMEMELBERA -

- DEZER WO BLSEREEVEIUAM
HE



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continueq)
B ISR ()

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREFRIZEERSN - LA TSI TR)

6.

SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

Inter-segment transactions are priced with reference to prices
charged to external parties for similar order. Central revenue and
expenses are not allocated to the operating segments as they are
not included in the measure of the segment’s profit that is used
by the chief operating decision-makers for assessment of segment
performance.

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group’s most senior
executive management monitors the results, assets and liabilities
attributable to each reportable segment on the following bases:

- Segment assets include all tangible, non-current and current
assets with the exception of investments in financial assets,
deferred tax assets and other corporate assets. Segment
liabilities include trade payable, accruals and other current
and non-current liabilities attributable to the business
activities of the individual segments and bank borrowings
managed directly by the segments.

- Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to income generated by those
segments and the expenses incurred by those segments or
which otherwise arise from the depreciation or amortisation
of assets attributable to those segments.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continueq)
MR (F

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREFRIZEERSN - LA TSI TR)

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 6. AiHERE (&)
(a) Segment revenue and results @) o EB W EE M S Ak
Property
Construction Property leasing development Total
B NERE NERRE b
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
ZE-tEf -T-XF ZE-tE -“T-RF ZE-tE -“T-xF ZB-tf —T-1F
$'000 $000 $'000 $000 $/000 $000 $'000 $000
r r r T r T r T
Revenue from external RENDEPH M
customers 912,789 822377 142,952 145,202 - - 1,055,741 967,579
Inter-segment revenue D% 63,200 127,800 10,189 1735 = - 73,389 129,535
Segment revenue kil G 975,989 950,177 153,141 146,937 - - 1,129,130 1,097,114
Segment results PEHEE 88,536 72,693 86,679 89,824 (3,484) (18) 171,731 162,499
Unallocated net income RARMAFE 2,752 3,249
Unallocated expenses RABZ (10,730) (7,39)
Net gain on derivative ITESBTAFHE
financial instruments 1,110 -
Net gain on cash flow REEFENIBNRERE
hedging instruments T AEKE
reclassified from equity = 3988
Reversal of impairment/ ELEEAEE
(impairment) of available-for- i1,/ (&)
sale securities 1,075 (2,191)
Increase in fair value of REMEZATFEEM
investment properties 82,723 285,195
Finance costs BIERK AR (21,343) (18.234)
Profit before taxation BB AnE R 227,318 427,110
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continueq)
B ISR ()

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREFRIZEERSN - LA TSI TR)

ERREBIZERER AT ¢ 2016/17 FERE

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 6. srabiE (&)
(b) Segment assets and liabilities (b) srEREEMER
2017 2016
—ZE—+tF —E—RF
$'000 $'000
F Tt
Segment assets DMEE

Construction R 272,441 305,016
Property leasing MEMRE 3,705,189 3,359,086
Property development YR 1,021,063 -
Total segment assets B EREE 4,998,693 3,664,102
Available-for-sale securities A HEFES 13,884 12,809
Deferred tax assets FRIEFIHE B 2,549 45
Unallocated office premises ROBPHAEYE 255,224 125,095

Unallocated head office and ROMBRRIREEEE
corporate assets 8,041 6,006
Unallocated cash and bank balances  AHEIR S RIFIT4ETF 262,390 21,743
Consolidated total assets A REE 5,540,781 3,829,800

Segment liabilities PHaE

construction j=:£ 440,322 364,444
Property leasing MEHRE 1,162,906 947,094
Property development YR 838,415 15
Total segment liabilities BmoatE 2,441,643 1,311,553
Tax payable e R 6,932 7,815
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBEAE 42,556 32,386

Unallocated head office and AoB AR NEEEE
corporate liabilities 22,732 864
Unallocated bank loans AOBIEITER 391,965 3,455
Consolidated total liabilities MERarRE 2,905,828 1,356,073
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continueq)
PRI (&

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREFRIZEERSN - LA TSI TR)

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 6. HEbHEE (&)
(c) Other segment information ()  HAls 4y &R
Property Property
Construction leasing development Unallocated Total
EZ NERE NERR KR &t
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016

I8t ZT-RF Z¥-4F “T-RF ZF-4F “T-RF Z¥-tF “F-RF -t “ET-5F
$'000 $000 $'000 $000 $'000 $000 $'000 $000 $'000 §000
T T Tn R i T Tr T i T

Additions to non-current  FEFREHBEE

Segment assets 618 - M W - - 132800 3812 3T 15073
(d) Geographic information (d) i [m R
No geographic information has been presented as all of the HARASEMELEESHEREE
Group's operating activities are carried out in Hong Kong. T T EEAEER -
(e) Information about major customers (e FABMEEEF IR
Revenue from customers contributing over 10% of the total W R 8 BRI A AN 5 B A 7 10%8Y
turnover of the Group is as follows: EFPWMT:
2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—RF
$'000 $'000
¥ T
Customer A ZFEA 449,514 496,573
Customer B %FB 428,108 108,134
Customer C =PC 15,984 134,095
Revenue from all of the above customers are generated N EMBEFPHWEIREEFTRE-

from building construction.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continueq)
MR EE (F

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREFRIZEERSN - LABTTSITR)

7.

REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME AND GAIN/(LOSS),
NET

Revenue which is derived from the Group's principal activities
and other income and gain/(loss) during the year is analysed as

We 5 B At W A\ e i s, (s 4E)

FRREAREEEE XY amIA R E UL
ARFWEs, (BR) DT :

follows:

2017 2016
—E—-+tHF NS
$'000 $'000
Fr FT
Revenue Wz
Revenue from building construction EFgiEla 912,789 822,377
Rental income He A 114,844 114,296
Rental related income e EEKRA 28,108 30,906
1,055,741 967,579
Other income and gain/(loss), net Hahl AR B (8518)
Bank interest income RITHREHA 199 574
Dividend income from unlisted securities ELEMEHHRSWA 875 816
Net gain on derivative financial instruments ~ $74£ &b T B E 1,110 -
Reversal of impairment/(impairment) of Al E A D EORE CRE)
available-for-sale securities (note 10(b) (K1a£100)) 1,075 (2,191)
Net foreign exchange gain/(loss) HNE H IR eSS (B1B) 6 (199)
Net unrealised gain on derivative financial PTESmIT AREIRFKE
instruments - 1,559
Net gain on cashflow hedging instrument HEZPEMHOBENRERE
reclassified from equity (note 70(b)) T AW (Aa2100)) - 3,988
Others Hb 1,671 499
4,936 5,046

FRHEBEIERAR DT ¢ 2016/17 FEHRE

103



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continueq)
B ISR (4F)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREFRIZERBAN - LA TTER)

8. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 8. BBt ni i Al
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting): BREADEFIE R, (GFA) LT &E:
2017 2016
—E—tF T —RF
$'000 $'000
Fr Tt
(a) Finance costs (@) BIHRAE
Interest on bank loans wholly repayable: RITERF B
— within five years -8 *@F%Wﬂi AEE 55,841 37,115
- after five years _ERE BN TFIEER 7,100 1,223
Other borrowing costs H A8 KA 11,985 2,353
74,926 40,691
Less: Amount included in construction BT ATERRZESLD
contracts in progress Enjs (10,193) (6,801)
Amount capitalised* ER{beRE* (43,390) (15,656)
21,343 18,234
(b) Staff costs (including directors’ (b) EIRE(BREESEHH)
remuneration)
Salaries, wages and other benefits He ITERHEMEAR 100,264 78,982
Contributions to defined contribution FE HFURIRET B K
retirement plans 3,058 2,304
103,322 81,286
Less: Amount included in construction BT AERBEESD
contracts in progress Eojeak:E (81,844) (67,837)
Amount capitalised ERbeE (9,474) (6,989)
12,004 6,460
(c) oOtheritems (c) HtEHE
Rental income from investment HEMEMGHESIA
properties (114,844) (114,296)
Less: Direct outgoings B HEES N 52,593 51,894
(62,251) (62,402)
Depreciation e 5,248 2,881
Impairment loss/(reversal of impairment FEU RSN 2 REEE,
loss) on trade receivables (note 19) (BB REBE) (47:219) 203 t3)
Auditor’s remuneration 1% ELRD BN &
— audit services —EE R 815 760
— other services —H AR 7 234 577
* The borrowing costs have been capitalised at the range of 2.34% to * BERARDIZER 34%E2.64% ( ZF—~

2.64% per annum (2016: 2.34% to 6.00% per annum)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continueq)
MR EE (F

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREFRIZEERSN - LA TTEIR)

9. INCOME TAX EXPENSES 9. B
(@) Income tax in the consolidated statement of profit or (@ HEEIRENIIERE:
loss represents:

2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
$'000 $'000
T T
current tax BN EAB 1R
Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax FRNEBFESHEME
for the year 22,775 22,539
Over-provision in respect of prior years 5 &[S BB E # (448) (15)
22,327 22,524
Deferred tax EAET 18
Origination and reversal of EERBEERERE
temporary differences 1,971 2,657
24,298 25,181
Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the British Virgin BREABEZHERASHEHNRA
Islands (“BVI") and the Cayman Islands, the Group is not KRG NEBBEHNEBE LS
subject to any income tax in the BVI and the Cayman Islands. EFES ST RAMEH-
The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at BEBNESHBHERIBERNTEMaT
16.5% (2016: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits for FE R B0 F1%16.5% (ZF — /N &
the year. 16.5% ) 5T & °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continueq)

9.

MR (F)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREFRIZEERSN - LA TSI TR)

(b)

INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Continuea)
Reconciliation between income tax expense and (b)
accounting profit before taxation at applicable tax rate:

9. FifBiZii (4

3 B A T S B i 458 B S BB
A Tl B i A B R

2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE-RF
$'000 $'000
T T
Profit before taxation B 150 Bl i A 227,318 427,110
Notional tax on profit before taxation, IZERARB@AEEER
calculated at the rate applicable w2 BEETE 2 BIR
to the profits in the jurisdictions
concerned 37,508 70,473
Effect of non-taxable income EEARTAL %% (12,772) (46,370)
Effect of non-deductible expenses A HMEREZNTE 389 596
Effect of unused tax losses not RERABABRIBEBENTE
recognised 685 638
Tax effect of prior year's unrecognised 74 &) A& 1 F 8 K HERT B
tax losses utilised in the current [
year (855) (135)
Over-provision in respect of LA F S B EA B
prior years (448) (15)
Others EAh (209) (6)
Actual income tax expense ERFEHRAS 24,298 25,181
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continueq)

MR EE (F

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise
(BREFRIZEERSN - LA TTEIR)

9. INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Continued)

indicated)

(c) Income tax in the consolidated statement of financial

position represents:

9. FifaBiili ()

(c)

A £ B IR LA N R P A B

(i)  Current taxation KRB E
2017 2016
—E—tF —T-REF
$'000 $'000
T Tt
Provision for Hong Kong Profits 74 & FI15 %1 4 45

Tax for the year 22,775 22,539
Provisional Profits Tax paid BAEHFIEH (15,843) (14,724)
6,932 7,815

Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised ERREEHBELSERAERE

(i)

The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial

KRB M IR R AR A E T
HIE(BE) / BENERED X

position and the movements during the year are as REREFIOT
follows:
Depreciation
allowances in
excess of
the related Hedging
Deferred tax arising from: depreciation Tax loss reserve Total
FTERHE
EERERR: SNERTE HIEER gl st
$000 $'000 $000 $000
T T T T
At 1 April 2015 R-ZE-HFNA—H 31,091 - 26 31,17
Credited to other comprehensive FAEBEZARER
income - - (1,433 (1,433)
Charged to the profit or loss kB 2,657 - - 2,657
At 31 March 2016 and 1 April 2016 RZE-—AE=A=T—-8k
—E-R¥mA-A 33,748 = (1,407) 32,341
Charged to other comprehensive HhEmzENE
income - - 1,478 1,478
Charged/(credited) to the profit or loss 1%/ (5t \) B3 4,560 (2,589) - 1,971
Acquisition of subsidiaries note 24)  WREEMT B A F (Hitoa) 4,217 - - 4,217
At 31 March 2017 RZZ—+F=ZRA=1+—H 42,525 (2,589) 71 40,007

FRHEBEIERAR DT ¢ 2016/17 FEHRE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continueq)

MR (F

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREFRIZEERSN - LA TSI TR)

9. INCOME TAX EXPENSES (continued)
(¢) Income tax in the consolidated statement of financial
position represents: (Continuea)

9. FifBiZi ()
(0)  ARA B AR DL M A BT A B4 -

[ 4@ )

(i) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised (i) ERBELHEALZEREE
(Continuea) (#&)
2017 2016
—E—tF AN
$'000 $'000
Fi Fi
Net deferred tax assets iR e M B R AERN
recognised on the BB EE T
consolidated statement of
financial position (2,549) (45)
Net deferred tax liabilities TEHRE VBN EAERE
recognised on the EEMIE R BFHE
consolidated statement of
financial position 42,556 32,386
40,007 32,341

(d) At 31 March 2017, the Group has not recognised deferred
tax assets in respect of unused tax losses of $1,770,000
(2016: $4,550,000) as it is not probable that sufficient future
taxable profits will be available against which the unused tax
losses can be utilised. The tax losses do not expire under
current tax legislation.

10. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(@) Tax effects relating to cash flow hedges included in
other comprehensive income

d) RZE—HF=ZA=+—H BRTK
A BE 2 A B 57 9 7R 2R FE ER B vas 1) DA
SHAR(E AR B TA B 18 - AN & B 5k
RE R IEEE1,770,0007T ( ZF—7X
F 1 4,550,00070) ERIEEFRIBE E °
RIBRITREER - IAE BT 28 H
B

10, At 4 i W 45
(@) A BARE A A 2T WAk i B e R
3 3 1) A 25 2

2017 2016

—E—+tF —E—RF

$'000 $'000

Fi T

Pre-tax amount BRI 58 7.712 (8,683)
Tax (credited)/charge BIE(GEA)/HH (232) 1,433
Net-of-tax amount Brfige5s 7,480 (7,250)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continueq)

MR EE (&)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRRrRIRERRSN - A TTEIR)

10. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (Continued) 10. Hfth 2y W 4s ()
(b) Components of other comprehensive income, (b) Al 2 i W A B AL B ER Ay (4G R
including reclassification adjustments W o R )
2017 2016
—EB—+F —E—RF
$'000 $'000
Frx Tt
Available-for-sale securities AHERS:
Changes in fair value and net E’\\Hﬂﬂi@uﬁl S ATEREA
movement in the fair value reserve NEEEBHR AT ERE
during the year recognised in ST
other comprehensive income - (1,361)
Reclassification adjustment BERBEAER
transferred to profit or loss — — B (Hit7)
impairment (note (7)) - 2,191
Net movement in the fair value REMEHEBEEREAN
reserve during the year recognised AT EREBEERFR
in other comprehensive income - 830
cash flow hedges: ReREEM:
Effective portion of changes in fair ﬁlﬁﬂﬁ&* F ¥R T A
value of hedging instruments NEFEEHHERLS
recognised during the year 1,407 (4,695)
Net deferred tax (charged)/credited to  (#II32) /st AEM 2 EURE A
other comprehensive income ERER IR R 58 (232) 1,433
Realisation of cash flow REemE PREREE
hedging reserve 6,305 -
Reclassification adjustment EERAEEABER
transferred to profit or loss — —HeREHPITA
net gain on cash flow hedging FUE (HEE7)
instruments (note (7)) - (3,988)
Net movement in the hedging reserve 7 H 2 [ U 35 AR E R
during the year recognised in the R RESEFE
other comprehensive income 7,480 (7,250)

ERREBIZERER AT ¢ 2016/17 FERE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continueq)
MR (F

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREFRIZEERSN - LA TSI TR)

11. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 11. EHHW
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the directors were as BENRENTERES2HMEOT
follows:
2017
gl of 3
Basic salaries,
allowances Retirement
and benefits scheme
Fees in kind Bonuses contributions Total
EXge.
R
ok ENER A BRARGTEMR @t
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Tr T Fr Tr T
Executive Directors YTES
Chan Hung Ming R L8R = 1,720 410 18 2,148
Lau Chi Wah k= = 1,720 410 18 2,148
Yuen Ying Wai RRE - 1,747 410 18 2,175
Kwan Wing Wo Bk - 1,351 300 18 1,669
Independent BUFHTES
Non-Executive Directors
Tsui Ka Wah BERE 249 - 60 - 309
Kan Yau Wo R 249 - 60 - 309
Mok Kwai Pui Bill REE 249 - 60 - 309
Lee Chung Yiu Johnny TR 249 - 60 - 309
Total @t 996 6,538 1,770 72 9,376
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continueq)

MR EE (F

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRRrRIRERRSN - A TTEIR)

11.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued)

)

11. EFHHM (&)

2016
—E-RE
Basic salaries,
allowances Retirement
and benefits scheme
Fees in kind Bonuses  contributions Total
EXREE
E K

ik BMREF TEAL RIRETEMER Bt

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

T Tr Tr T Tr
Executive Directors HITEE
Chan Hung Ming P& 7.8 - 1,638 410 18 2,066
Lau Chi Wah BEE - 1,638 410 18 2,066
Yuen Ying Wai RERE - 1,643 410 18 2,071
Kwan Wing Wo Bk - 1,210 300 18 1,528
Independent BUFHTES

Non-Executive Directors

Tsui Ka Wah BRE 240 - 60 - 300
Kan Yau Wo Gl 240 - 60 - 300
Mok Kwai Pui Bill Sh-yi 240 - 60 - 300
Lee Chung Yiu Johnny ZRE 240 - 60 - 300
Total M@t 960 6,129 1,770 72 8,931

No director received any emoluments from the Group as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation
for loss of office during the year. No director waived or agreed to
waive any emoluments during the years ended 31 March 2017

and 2016.

The Company did not operate any share option scheme for the
purchase of ordinary shares in the Company during the years

ended 31 March 2017 and 2016.

AEEABMBEFTUDRAEEERME  1F
AMBERAEEINMBAERERN RS K
FRRABUBE - B#E-_T—LFR=-F
—RNEZA=T-BLFE HEEENE
KATREEMMHE -

ARBIREBE-_Z—+tFR_T—RF=A
=+ — B EMA T B R R I AR D
PN/NEIE-S L v
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continueq)
MR (F

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREFRIZEERSN - LA TSI TR)

12. EMOLUMENTS OF FIVE HIGHEST PAID 12, 445 5 N 1 B s 2% 4 PR E TH
INDIVIDUALS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT 4
(@) Emoluments of five highest paid individuals (@)  To4% 5 e B N L T <

HE_T—+F=A=1T—HILFE"
AEBNEEESHFMALEEIE
(ZE2-RFAB)EF EMEXH
TR - KA TS AR T

The five highest paid individuals of the Group during the year
ended 31 March 2017 include 4 (2016: 4) directors whose
emoluments are disclosed in note 11. The aggregate of the
emoluments in respect of the remaining individual is as

follows:
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
$'000 $'000
F T
Salaries, allowances and o EBREWEF
benefits in kind 1,389 1,306
Discretionary bonuses B TEAT 339 323
Retirement scheme contributions RIS 18 18
1,746 1,647
The above individual's emoluments are within the following FAZZMEN FATEE:
band:
2017 2016
—E—+F ZE-RF
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
AE N
$1,500,001 to $2,000,000 1,500,001t £2,000,0007T 1 1
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continueq)

MR EE (F

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREFRIZEERSN - LA TTEIR)

12. EMOLUMENTS OF FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(b)  Emoluments of senior management
Other than the emoluments of the Directors and five
highest paid individuals disclosed in notes 11 and 12(a), the
emoluments of the remaining senior management fell within
the following bands:

12, T 44 85 w0 BN - R i #5045 PR g
& (#)

(b) o A4S P P <2
BRI 1T R 120 ENES A
AREHFMA LM KT ERE
BENMEER THIEENA

2017 2016

—E—+tF ZE-RF

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

AE ANEL

Nil to $1,000,000 = 21,000,000 2 1
$1,000,001 to $1,500,000 1,000,0017T 21,500,0007T 1 1

No emoluments were paid for the year by the Group to any
of its senior management as an inducement to join, or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office (2016:

AEBAEEYERNSRERE N
ERME - FRRSI BN B AL
BEH R RERRRBUME(=F

Nil). — RN ) e
13. DIVIDENDS 13. kB
(@) Dividends payable to owners of the Company (@) JERAEGR AT AN R AR A
attributable to profit the year: H i B -
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
$'000 $'000
Fr Fr
Interim dividend declared and paid EEREZMHFERE
of HK4.0 cents (2016: HK4.0 cents) R EBRLOEM
per ordinary share (ZZ=—7RF: 4051) 25,810 21,330
Final dividend proposed after the end R EREHIREEZRE 2
of the reporting period of RARAR B Z AR E @ARA.078 (1L
HK4.0 cents (2016: HK4.0 cents) (ZZE—7R"F: 40%5M)
per ordinary share 25,810 23,464
51,620 44,794

The final dividend proposed after the end of the reporting
period has not been recognised as a liability at the end of
the reporting period.

FRHEBEIERAR DT ¢ 2016/17 FEHRE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continueq)
MR (F

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREFRIZEERSN - LA TSI TR)

13. DIVIDENDS (Continued)

(b)

Dividends payable to owners of the Company
attributable to profit for previous financial year,
approved and paid during the year:

1 3. H& JE\ (/ég)

(b)

Ja 7 b Bk A R ¥ ) - S i AR
R B AT T A A F A AN

BB

2017 2016
—E—tF ZE-REF
$'000 $'000
T Fi
Final dividend in respect of RAF FEHE A 52 Y
the previous financial year, U BRFERARE
approved and paid during the year FREBERAOEI (ZF—RF:
of HK4.0 cents (2016: HK4.2 cents) 4.2%540)
per ordinary share 23,464 20,361
14. EARNINGS PER SHARE 14. FHREF
Basic earnings per share (@) FFRHEEAREF

(a)

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of
$203,020,000 (2016: $401,929,000) and the weighted average
number of 645,246,521 shares (2016 (restated). 645,246,521
shares) in issue during the year. Basic and diluted earnings
per share for the year ended 31 March 2016 have been
restated for the impact of bonus issue of shares.

Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share are the same as the basic
earnings per share as the Company had no dilutive potential
shares in existence during the years ended 31 March 2017
and 2016.
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TRREARNEF TR B A A ) 5 A% R
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continueq)
MR EE (F

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREFRIZEERSN - LABTTSITR)

15. FIXED ASSETS 15. [fls& & B
Investment Furniture,
properties Buildings  fixtures and
Investment under held for  other fixed
properties development Sub-total Own use assets Sub-total Total
BRT B -£ER
REME REME gt BRNE HtETEE N h
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Tr i Fr i i r Tr
Cost or valuation: RASfEE:
At 1 April 2016 RZE-"EENA—H 3,290,000 - 3,290,000 127,000 14,166 141,166 3,431,166
Additions NE 81,209 - 81,209 - 4,661 4,661 85,870
Acquisition of assets (note 24) WEEE (l#2) 132,668 - 132,668 132,669 - 132,669 265,337
Surplus on revaluation EfRR% 82,723 - 82,723 - - - 82,723
Written off/disposal K/ e - - - - (559) (559) (559)
At 31 March 2017 R-E—+F=A=1-H | 737,5§6L690 7777777 - ,3L5§6L690, - ,2§9L699, - 1 8L2é87 - ,ZZ7L9§7, o §§6§§32 |
Representing: B
Cost KA - - - 259,669 18,268 277,937 277,937
Valuation fhiE 3,586,600 - 3,586,600 - - - 3,586,600
3,586,600 - 3,586,600 259,669 18,268 277,937 3,864,537

Accumulated depreciation: RiHE:

At 1 April 2016 RZE-~ENA—H - - - 1,905 10,496 12,401 12,401
Charge for the year FRZ - - - 3,867 1,381 5,248 5,248
Written off/disposal Hip/ e - - - - (556) (556) (556)
At 31 March 2017 RZF-t¥=A=t-B - - = | 5]127 - 11L3g1, - 17L023, - Jz,(19§ i
Net book value: RHER:

At 31 March 2017 R-E—+E=A=1—H 3,586,600 = 3,586,600 253,897 6,947 260,844 3,847,444
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continueq)
P HREE (F

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREFRIZEERSN - LA TSI TR)

15. FIXED ASSETS (Continued) 15. [ & g (&)
Investment Furniture,
properties Buildings  fixtures and
Investment under held for other fixed
properties  development Sub-total own use assets Sub-total Total
BER Gi-EER
RENZE REME g ERNE HpETEE NG @it
$'000 $'000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $'000
Fr Tr Fr Fr Tr Tr T
Cost or valuation: BASMEE:
At 1 April 2015 RZE-RENA—H 1,944,000 1,041,000 2,985,000 - 10,251 10,251 2,995,251
Additions NE 1,150 145,655 146,805 - 3930 3930 150,735
Written off EiE - - - - (15) (15) (15)
Transfer e 1,059,655 (1,186,655) (127,000) 127,000 - 127,000 -
Surplus on revaluation EfhRH 285,195 - 285,195 - - - 285,195
At 31 March 2016 WZE-REZA=1+-H o }1%99090 7777777 - 73,279(}07007 - 121090 77777 1 1&1967 - 174L17667 o 73{1371,@ B
Representing: B
Cost KA - - - 127,000 14,166 141,166 141,166
Valuation fhE 3,290,000 - 3,290,000 - - - 3,290,000
3,290,000 - 3,290,000 127,000 14,166 141,166 3,431,166

Accumulated depreciation: RiHFE:

At 1 April 2015 R-Z-HEMA—A - - - - 9,535 9,535 9,535
Charge for the year ERYH - - - 1,905 976 2,881 2,881
Written off B ~ - - - (15) (15) (15)
At 31 March 2016 RZF-A"¥=A=t-B - - - 39705 77777 1 9426 77777 1 %491 77777 172%01 -
Net book value: REERE:

At 31 March 2016 R-E- E=A=1—H 3,290,000 - 3,290,000 125,095 3670 128,765 3,418,765
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continueq)
ISR ()

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREFRIZEERSN - LABTTSITR)

15. FIXED ASSETS (Continued)

@

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties and
investment properties under development is Level 3

15. [ & & (4)
@ AEENREMERERIREDE
MAFHEBR =REEERHEAE-

recurring fair value measurements. The movement of these UL E AR EBIT
balances are as follows:

2017 2016
—E—tF —ET-RF
$'000 $'000
T Tt
At 1 April RO A—H 3,290,000 2,985,000
Additions NE 213,877 146,805
Transfer 2R - (127,000)
Fair value adjustment NEEHE 82,723 285,195
At 31 March R=A=+—H 3,586,600 3,290,000

The fair value adjustment of investment properties and
investment properties under development is recognised in
the line item “Increase in fair value of investment properties”
on the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, there were no
transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers into or
out of Level 3.

The Group's investment properties and investment
properties under development were revalued on 31 March
2017 and 31 March 2016 by Colliers International (Hong
Kong) Limited, an independent firm of surveyors, who have
among their staff Members of the Hong Kong Institute
of Surveyors with recent experience in the location and
category of property being valued, on a market value
basis. The management of the Group has discussion with
the surveyors on the valuation assumptions and valuation
results when the valuation is performed at each interim and
annual reporting date.

BREMERERTREVENLFE
HENREBRERN [REMERTE
] EA R

RZE—+F=A=+—HILFEH
W B —RRE R T EER TR
AREE=ZMONBALEL-

AEBNREMERERPRENE
R-ZE—+ttF=ZA=+—BRK=Z
—RNEZA=T—HHBLAEEMTT
BHBEEMERBRE (FE)ERRQ A
(HETEHHBEEEINEmEgS
8 SR EYEN BRI AT
HAELSR) EMAEREME - ~EE
EEEREGEIHEFERS HEE
TEEREAERELGELEREZ
E(hERMEITH MR o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continueq)
MR (F

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREFRIZEERSN - LA TSI TR)

15. FIXED ASSETS (Continued)

@

15. [l & e ()

(Continued) @ (&)
The following table shows the significant unobservable TH RBRHERENERTAEHE
inputs used in the valuation model: HIE -
Properties Valuation techniques Unobservable input Adopted rate/value
kS ER % TAERYE ERMFE/EE
2017 2016
—E—+5 “E-RF
Investment properties
REME
- Data centres Income approach - discounted  Risk-adjusted discount rate 8% 6%
cash flow analysis
—HEHL WAZ-BRBRSREDN BB R AL TR &
Expected market rental growth 3.5% 4.5%
BEmEEEER
Expected occupancy rate 97% - 100% 92% - 100%
RELAR
Terminal capitalisation rate 4.5% 5%
BinERE
- Office premises Market comparison method Market unit rate of saleable area, $19,110 per N/A
after taking into account the square feet
location and size factors
N ES S EE FANBMANEE W5 BEAR TEA
EAERER 19,1107

The fair value of investment properties — data centres is
determined on the basis of capitalisation of discounted cash
flow analysis by discounting a projected cash flow series
associated with the properties using risk-adjusted discount
rates. The valuation takes into account expected market
rental growth and occupancy rates of the properties. The
discount rates used have been adjusted for the quality and
location of the buildings and the tenant credit quality. The fair
value measurement of investment properties — data centres
is positively correlated to the expected market rental growth
and the occupancy rate and negatively correlated to the risk-
adjusted discount rate and terminal capitalisation rate.

REME-BERLZ R FETRE
MIRBSREBEMMENNEE B
HrAGE AR A BB R R EAZE
YMEMERN—RINFEARERE - A8
ZRIZEMENBEATISHESIEE
RHEE - ERNEREDARBEX
EMEZRMEAREPNEERR
R -REME -FEPLHRFER
EEBHAHISHESEE R HERKILE
b o i B B R EE R 3R R e R B AL
KRR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continueq)
MR EE (F

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREFRIZEERSN - LABTTSITR)

15. FIXED ASSETS (Continued)

@

(Continued)

The fair value of investment properties — office premises is
determined on the basis of assuming sale of the property
interest in its existing state by making reference to
comparable sale transactions as available in the relevant
market. The valuation is subject to suitable adjustments
between the subject property and the comparable
properties. The fair value measurement of investment
properties — office premises is positively correlated to the
market unit rate of saleable area.

15. [ & & (4)

@)

(%)
RENE-PMREPFERZ2 A FETIR
FYMERBANN THE - L L2MRIER
NS LEHER S - TRME 2 (A
HEAILBMEZEIELEEHE - RE
ME-WRREME 2 A FEFEETIS
EREBEEEKEL-

The Group leases out a number of building facilities under b AEBERELCLHEFALBSETE
operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial period FRIE-ZEHE—RUTRHA_ZE
of 2 to 20 years, with an option to renew the lease after that ZHE - WBREERG M REEEL
date at which time all terms are renegotiated. Ry 28 37 175 P2 PR B {6 K o
All properties held under operating leases that would FrEMEAGERETFFREEE
otherwise meet the definition of investment property are MmITEAEREMEZERTGNE
classified as investment properties. RILEME-
The Group's total future minimum lease payments under REBBRBIIHBELEHEENBE
non-cancellable operating leases are receivable as follows: UK REREERIBREENAT
2017 2016
—E—-+tHF ZE-RF
$'000 $'000
Fr FT
Within 1 year —FR 118,718 123,066
After 1 year but within 5 years —FRERFA 298,925 377,556
After 5 years AFi% 182,271 142,279
599,914 642,901
The Group’s buildings held for own use and investment © AEEMEERMERKREVMESAN
properties are situated in Hong Kong and held under REBRAREEOFE -
medium-term leases.
The Group's buildings held for own use and investment d AEBEFMEERVEREEYEDE

properties were pledged against bank loans, details of which
are set out in note 22.

EREBZERAERDE ¢ 2016/17 FERS
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continueq)

MR (F

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREFRIFEERSN - LA TSI TR)

16. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

16. At < i & e

2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
$'000 $'000
Fr FT
Available-for-sale securities, AIMHERS BWMEMBIELT
quoted but unlisted 13,884 12,809

The available-for-sale securities were pledged as security for the
bank loans granted to the Group (note 22).

AHHER

FEBRERR TAKERTE
REVBER (H7222) -

17. GROSS AMOUNT DUE FROM/TO CUSTOMERS FOR 17. JEW EMNEF G #H TRBH
CONTRACT WORK
2017 2016
Bt —E—RF
$'000 $'000
Fr T
Gross amount due from customers EREFENIRERS
for contract work
Contract costs incurred plus recognised B84 A R I
profits less recognised losses ERE N EREE 3,408,451 3,047,451
Less: Progress billings received and R B R WO IR
receivable (3,359,054) (3,028,636)
49,397 18,815
Gross amount due to customers ENEFEHNIRES
for contract work
Progress billings received and receivable 2R FE U E R = 108,134
Less: Contract costs incurred plus B BB AEA KR I
recognised profits less recognised B iR AR B R E 18
losses - (90,842)
= 17,292

All gross amounts due from/to customers for contract work are
expected to be recovered/settled within one year.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continueq)
MR E (F

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREFRIZEEASN - LA TTEIR)

18. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR SALES 18. B ERpYE

2017 2016

—E—tF —E—RF

$'000 $'000

Fr Tt

Properties under development located URBEANERPYZE

in Hong Kong—medium term leases —FHIFR L 992,697 -

(@) The amounts of properties under development for sales are (@) HHEMNBEAYEBREIS R
not expected to be recovered within twelve months from the HHRz2%+ @A RATKE -

end of the reporting period.

(b) At 31 March 2017, leasehold land included in the properties b M-ZE—+FE=ZA=+—H #HEE
under development for sales amounted to $938,880,000 WERTYERE s HETHERBRE
(2016: Nil). 938,880,0007T ( =& — /X &) o

(c) The Group's properties under development for sales were € AEBHEEENZEERWESERR
pledged against bank loans, detail of which are set out in NEUSRITE S BB N T
note 22. 22 ¢
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continueq)

MR EE (F)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREFRIFEERSN - LA TSI TR)

19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 19, JBE I ok B L b JE ik JE
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
$'000 $'000
Fr T
Trade receivables (note (1) FEUER SR (B aE0)) 56,542 125,510
Less: allowance for doubtful debts W RER B (241) (38)
56,301 125,472
Deposits, prepayments and e FBRFER

other receivables (note (j) H{th e W FRIB (M) 55,050 17,628
Retention receivables (note (i) FEUSAR BB ZRIB (a2 (i) 73,430 63,085
184,781 206,185

Notes: Kiat -

(i) Except for an amount of $23,887,000 (2016: $27,772,000) as at 31
March 2017, which is expected to be recovered after one year, all of
the remaining balances are expected to be recovered within one
year.

(i) Except for an amount of $44,164,000 (2016: $42,181,000) as at 31
March 2017, which is expected to be recovered after one year, all of
the remaining balances are expected to be recovered within one
year.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continueq)

MR EE (E)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREFRIZEERSN - LABTTSITR)

19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continuea) 19.

The ageing analysis of the Group’s trade receivables (net of

OB WS MR sk B Lt B WAL sk I ()
REZRBHFEASBE RGN (FIKR

allowance for doubtful debts), based on invoice dates, is as BREE) ERR DT T
follows:

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
$'000 $'000
T T
Less than 1 month LR —1E A 53,017 124,040
More than 1 month but less than 3 months BB —EAE LR =@ A 2,432 1,386
More than 3 months but less than 6 months  #Bi& =1 B {8 R /<@ A 683 46
More than é months but less than 1 year BB E A B DR —F 169 -
56,301 125,472

At 31 March 2017, the Group's trade receivables of $241,000
(2016: $38,000) were individually determined to be impaired. The
individually impaired receivables related to customers who were in
financial difficulties and management assessed that only a portion
of the receivables is expected to be recovered. Accordingly,
the Group has recognised impairment losses during the year in
relation to the amounts which are considered to be irrecoverable.

R-ZE—+F=R=+—HB XEER/H

241,000 ( ==&
?ha?ﬁﬁmzﬂu

—74F  38,0007T ) Y FE I BR
BEIURE - BRI E

Rl ELH LR

KA PSSR AR MIREEE

%15 EHERES

o FE YR SR AT T U @ o A

I AR AR 2 RIAEA KB E R ANF

TR ARRE RO RUE R 1R

The movement of the impairment during the year, including both FAMBE (BEERRERBETS) K
specific and collective loss components, is as follows: gE)NT

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
$'000 $'000
F T
At 1 April RmA—A 38 46
Impairment loss recognised (rnote 8(c)) EREEEE (#i2sc)) 203 -
Reversal (note 8(c)) B8 (H:28()) = ®)
At 31 March R=A=+—8 241 38

ERREBIZERER AT ¢ 2016/17 FERE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continueq)
MR (F

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREFRIZEERSN - LA TSI TR)

19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 19. JBEBCHR 3K B H At e Wk I (42)
The ageing analysis of trade receivables that are neither I AR AE B 2k 2k R AR VE B B A FE IR SRV BR
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired are as BRI
follows:
2017 2016
—E—+F ZE-RF
$'000 $'000
Fr Fr
Neither past due nor impaired gABBSARE 53,017 124,040
Less than 1 month past due D —1E A B 2,306 1,386
Over 1 month but less than BE—EAELKR=EA R
3 months past due 759 33
Over 3 months but less than HBid = A E DRI E A 2 8
6 months past due 50 13
Over 6 months but less than 1 year past due #8:@/~1E 518 DA —F 5| H 169 -
| 3284 1432
56,301 125,472
Receivables which were neither past due nor impaired related to BE R 8 HA IR R R E M IR BR 508 K il B 4B 4
a range of customers for whom there was no recent history of REEREF o
default.
Receivables which were past due but not impaired relate to EE A ERBENERRRY REREEF
independent customers that have a good track record of trading RIFNR ZEELDHENEEERP - XA
with the Group. Based on past experience, management believes FEB BN EEERTESERFLEER
that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these TR EEKE  HERERBBAR
balances as there has not been significant change in credit quality ZEERITIRBERE-

and the balances are still considered fully recoverable.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continueq)

MR EE (E)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREFRIZEERSN - LA TSI TR)

20. RESTRICTED AND PLEDGED DEPOSITS AND CASH 20.

52 PR i B EL 43 17 sk DA B B 4 B o

AND BANK BALANCES T 17
2017 2016
—ZE—+tF —E—RF
$'000 $'000
T T
Cash and bank balance He RIRTTHET 430,624 134,353
Fixed deposits TEHTF K 18,834 38,828
,,,,, 449,458 173181
Less: e
Pledged deposits (note (i) BERTFR (M E0)) (53,094) (47,552)
Restricted deposits (note (i) SR BT (A aEa)) (6,064) (6,064)
- (59158 (53,616)
Cash and bank balances as stated in RA AR R A
the consolidated statement of financial Re MIBTHET R
position and cash and cash equivalents FERERERAN
as stated in the consolidated cash flows ReRREFEEY
Statement 390,300 119,565
Notes: Kzt -

The balances represent bank deposits pledged to secure banks
loans of the Group (see note 22).

The balances represent security deposits placed in a bank according
to the terms of the tenancy agreement entered into with a tenant
by the Group. The Group has no absolute right and control over
the bank balance as the usage of the bank balance is specifically
restricted by the tenant under the tenancy agreement. The Group
can deduct the balance upon the breach of the tenancy agreement
by the tenant. If the Group makes a deduction from the deposit, the

IEFRRITEREERAEBRITER
AR (RMEE22) -

ZAEFERIEA KB B — AP
S R IE ASRITRRE S - AREAR
THEFXEE RS THEP AR - Afk
B S5 IR 1T A 7 I BB H R AT B4 - R
SEARNZEPERBEHERIIRZAS
7o RSB FRPEL NG - ZHEPA
RERN+UBANMHEERE-

tenant shall make up the difference within 14 days of demand.

ERREBIZERER AT ¢ 2016/17 FERE
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MR EE (F)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREFRIFEERSN - LA TSI TR)

21. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

o ARk B 3L A M A5F 5k

2017 2016
—E—+F ZT—REF
$'000 $'000
Fr Tt
Trade payables FERTER X 110,190 53,896
Other payables and accrued charges Hih et s IE R EETE 36,345 101,954
Rental and other deposits (note (i) e kEaize (Ha0) 7,435 6,064
Receipts in advance TEUBR X 3,613 3,527
Retention payables (note (iii) JERHRBB & (W a2i)) 60,589 54,354
218,172 219,795

Notes it

(i) Except as disclosed in notes 21(ii) to (iii) below, all of the trade and
other payables are expected to be settled within one year.

(i) An amount of $7,435,000 (2016: $6,064,000) as at 31 March 2017 is
expected to be settled after one year.

(i) Except for an amount of $32,697,000 (2016: $31,282,000) as at 31
March 2017, which is expected to be settled after one year, all of the
remaining balances are expected to be settled within one year.

The ageing analysis of the Group’s trade payables, based on

(iif)

F?TXMT.&% (VE (T RSN B FER
AR EMENRBEIR —FREE -

R-ZE—tF=HF=+—HA%H7,435000
m( ZE /\¢ 6,064,0007T ) H) X I8 TE 51
R—FBEEE-

R+ F=A=+—HBREHN—
/éi ﬁﬂ’] % 1H32,697,000 (ZZ — /<&
31,282,0007T ) 4 » 842 T PR AEEATREIN —4F
NS e

i
F

REZER A ERNKEENRRARE D

invoice dates, is as follows: e
2017 2016
—E—+HF —E—REF
$'000 $'000
Tt T
Less than 1 month LR —1EA 74,159 38,633
More than 1 month but less than 3 months  #B:@E—EARELR=EA 35,740 15,205
More than 3 months but less than 6 months  #2:& =1& BB R/~ E A 122 55
More than 6 months but less than 1 year HBiENE A EDR—F 137 3
More than 1 year HBil—F 32 -
110,190 53,896
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continueq)

MR E (F

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRRrRIRERRSN - A TTEIR)
22. BANK LOANS

22. SMITEXK

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
$'000 $'000
Fr Tt
Bank loans RITER
- Secured —FER 2,625,972 1,064,331
— Unsecured — R 12,054 5,924
2,638,026 1,070,255
The bank loans were repayable as follows: IRITERBER I T FEERE
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
$'000 $'000
Fi T
Within 1 year and included in —FARIIARBE G
current liabilites 118,016 125,546
After 1 year and included in —FRRIIAFERDHEE:
non-current liabilities:
After 1 year but within 2 years —FREMFA 69,763 534,186
After 2 years but within 5 years MEREBRAFR 1,929,378 375,523
After 5 years HF% 520,869 35,000
___2520010  ° 944,709
2,638,026 1,070,255

EHEBERBRAT 0 2016/17 FEHRE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continueq)
B ISR (4F)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREFRIZERBAN - LA TTER)

22. BANK LOANS (Continued)

@)

At 31 March 2017, the bank loans bear interest ranging from
2.09% t0 3.69% (2016: 1.73% t0 6.00%) per annum and were

22. 1
a)

(

Fak #)
RZZE—tF=A=+—B RTE
ROEFENF209EZEIOE (ZF

secured by the following assets: —NEF: 173EE6.00E) - WA R
BEEER:
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-REF
$'000 $'000
Fr Ft
Investment properties "EYE 3,586,600 3,290,000
Property, plant and equipment Y HE L& 253,897 125,095
Pledged deposits EEBTR 53,094 47,552
Available-for-sale securities AT EE A 13,884 12,809
Properties under development HHENBEREFRYE

for sales 992,697 -
Other assets HEMm&EE 45,966 39,527
4,946,138 3,514,983

In addition, at 31 March 2017, the banking facilities of the
Group were secured by the following:

- assignment of project proceeds, project insurance
and fire insurance policies for certain construction
contracts in relation to certain banking facilities
(including performance bonds) granted to the
Group with maximum amount of $579,307,000
(2016:$512,977,000);

- assignment of all rentals and all other moneys,
sales proceeds and insurance over the investment
properties of the Group in relation to certain bank
loans granted to the Group with carrying amount of
$2,023,790,000 (2016: $920,611,000); and

- share mortgages over the entire issued and paid-up
share capital of certain subsidiaries.

Certain of the Group's banking facilities are subject to the
fulfilment of covenants relating to certain ratios as are
commonly found in lending arrangements with financial
institutions. If the Group were to breach the covenants the
drawn down facilities would become repayable on demand.
The Group regularly monitors its compliance with these
covenants. As long as the Group complies these covenants,
it is considered that the respective drawn down facilities
will not be repaid on demand. Further details of the Group's
management of liquidity risk are set out in note 30(b).
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- HEEETEEAAMNEBEEMS
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579,307,0007T ( =& — XN F :
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— HEEASEKEVENFRENRS
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MR EE (F

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREFRIZEERSN - LABTTER)

23. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 23. i em T H
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
$'000 $'000
Fr Tt
Cash flow hedges: interest rate swaps BeMEL R FXmH (429) 8,530
Represented by: 5K
Non-current assets IEmENEE (571) -
Non-current liabilities EmBEE 142 8,530
(429) 8,530
(@ The notional principal amounts of derivative financial (@ MRMEPRABEEMNTESHRTAN
instruments outstanding at the end of the reporting period BEASFEWOT
were as follows:
2017 2016
—E—tF T —RF
$'000 $'000
¥ T
Interest rate swaps (note 30(c)(i) M =5y (7 22300c)(0)) 89,851 606,500
(b) Derivative financial assets/liabilities represent the amounts b TTELmEE " BEREASEEMNSR

the Group would receive/pay if the positions were closed EHRT ARSI, I FKIE T
at the end of the reporting period respectively. Derivative FEEBETGITERGHIEANITE
financial instruments that did not qualify for hedge TRIAREATFENEEZSHEN
accounting and their corresponding changes in fair values B AR -

have been recognised in the profit or loss.
(c) The loss on ineffective portion recognised in profit or loss € BESHAEHAEENBEIID TR
\\

that arise from cash flow hedges amounts to Nil (2016: Nil). BRARRZEBEBEAT (ZF—X:
).
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24. ACQUISITION OF ASSETS THROUGH
ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

@

24, T I8 W Sl R VR 2 ) O

Oon 7 June 2016, the Group, through a wholly-owned @ RZZE—RFAtR FKEFEB-
subsidiary, entered into a provisional agreement with rEMBAREBYE=F([EF])
independent third party (the “Seller”) pursuant to acquire R EREE 7R - DAMR{E 130,560,000 4
the entire interest in Eson Development Limited (“Eson”), a BERBEREARAR ([HE])HEH
company principally holding office premises in Hong Kong B HFERE AR EENHA
for property investment purposes, at a cash consideration EMEERMERERZ - BBONA
of $130,560,000. By analysing the inputs, process and AR - 0 AN H - o WO R AR
outputs of the company, the acquisition did not constitute WIS WEERKBEE - RSB
an acquisition of business and was accounted as acquisition RZZE—R"FNA=+HZEK  ZEH
of assets. The transaction was completed on 30 September M AAEBHHREA ARz —-
2016 and Eson became a subsidiary of the Group
accordingly.
The assets acquired and the liabilities recognised at the date REEESNEERBERNBEN
of acquisition were as follows: ™~
$'000
T
Building held for own use (note 15) B R (MiE15) 132,669
Deferred tax liabilities (note 9(c)(i) BIEFRIEE & (K7:F90)3)) (2,109)
Net assets acquired WEEFEE 130,560
Consideration on acquisition of a subsidiary WEEH B AR 2 RE 130,560
Satisfied by: *1F:
Cash e 130,560

Net cash outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of

the acquisition of a subsidiary:

BERARENBARNRE RREFE
)2 R

$'000
Tt

Cash consideration paid

BENHRSKE
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24. ACQUISITION OF ASSETS THROUGH
ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

()

On 7 June 2016, the Group, through a wholly-owned
subsidiary, entered into a provisional agreement with
independent third party (the “Seller”) pursuant to acquire the
entire interest in Easton Development Limited (“Easton”), a
company principally holding office premises in Hong Kong
for property investment purposes, at a cash consideration
of $130,560,000. By analysing the inputs, process and
outputs of the company, the acquisition did not constitute
an acquisition of business and was accounted as acquisition
of assets. The transaction was completed on 30 September
2016 and Easton became a subsidiary of the Group
accordingly.

The assets acquired and the liabilities recognised at the date

24, 75 I8 W Sl R R 2 W W R ()

b)) RZZE—RFANALR AEEFEB—
2EMBAREBYE=7 ([EH])
R ZFREF 17h5% - AT (E130,560,0007T 48
BREZRARQA ([REHEAE
fm - EX2RE —ENEBORA
EVERE/MERERE - BEONA
AIEY S A - DD T M - e URE T A
WEES TEFERBEE - LR HE
R-ZE—RFAA=TBEZX REA
MKAAEEHMBAR 2 —-

REBEAESHNEERERNARBL

of acquisition were as follows: ™~
$'000
Tt
Investment properties (note 15) "EWME (Hi15) 132,668
Deferred tax liabilities (note 9(c)(ii) RIEFLIB B E (B E9Cc)i)) (2,108)
Net assets acquired WEgFEE 130,560
Consideration on acquisition of a subsidiary WEEH B AR 2R E 130,560
Satisfied by: XA
Cash Be 130,560

Net cash outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of

ERUEHBARNEE RREEE

the acquisition of a subsidiary: Y2 R
$'000
T
Cash consideration paid BERMBERE 130,560

EHEEERERAT 201617 FEHE 13
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25. SHARE CAPITAL 25. A
2017 2016
gLl of 3 “E-RE
No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
RAEE S HF g E &8
'000 $'000 ‘000 $'000
TR Tr T Tt
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of $0.01 each BREBIITHEBR 10,000,000 100,000 10,000,000 100,000

Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid: EZER CETRAR:

At 1 April RMA—A 586,588 5,866 484,783 4,848
Issuance of new shares under the bonus REARBTETOIRN

issues (notes (i, (i) and (i) (Biat)~ (& i) 58,658 586 101,805 1,018
At 31 March R=ZA=+—H 645,246 6,452 586,588 5,866
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as TERFEABRUDTRERNKE I
declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share ZEEARNFABRRAELER—ZENRE
at meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with BN ARTIG NEEMS ATA SR
regard to the Company’s residual assets. ZB RSN -
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25. SHARE CAPITAL (Continuea)

Notes:

0]

(iif)

Pursuant to the ordinary resolution passed at the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 23 July 2015, bonus shares were
issued to shareholders whose names appeared on the register of
members of the Company on 31 July 2015, the record date, on the
basis of one new share credited as fully paid for every ten shares
held.

On 12 August 2015, an amount of $484,783 standing to the credit
of the share premium account was applied in paying up in full
48,478,326 ordinary shares of $0.01 each which were allotted and
issued as fully paid to the shareholders who were entitled to those
bonus shares.

Pursuant to the ordinary resolution passed at the extraordinary
general meeting of the Company held on 17 November 2015, bonus
shares were issued to shareholders whose names appeared on
the register of members of the Company on 8 December 2015, the
record date, on the basis of one new share credited as fully paid for
every ten shares held.

On 17 December 2015, an amount of $533,261 standing to the
credit of the share premium account was applied in paying up in full
53,326,158 ordinary shares of $0.01 each which were allotted and
issued as fully paid to the shareholders who were entitled to those
bonus shares.

Pursuant to the ordinary resolution passed at the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 28 July 2016, bonus shares were
issued to shareholders whose names appeared on the register of
members of the Company on 8 August 2016 (which was postponed
from 5 August 2016 pursuant to the Company’s announcement
dated 1 August 2016), the record date, on the basis of one new
share credited as fully paid for every ten shares held.

On 16 August 2016, an amount of $586,588 standing to the credit
of the share premium account was applied in paying up in full
58,658,774 ordinary shares of $0.01 each which were allotted and
issued as fully paid to the shareholders who were entitled to those
bonus shares.

25. A (&)

AT
(i)

(iii)

ERREBIZERER AT ¢ 2016/17 FERE

BREBEARBR-_ZE—RAFELA-_+=0%
THREEFAS LBRENTRREE R
—Z-RELA=+—HB (%A H)E5
RARBEAMOKR R BEAT
ARG ERE—RARIESE
BT RD °

RZZE—RAFNA+TZB RHEERAS
484,783TTHIE AR AN 2 48,478,326 ik & iR
E{H0.017CH) BB - ZE AR Bk o
BRBTTERBIRXA AR

RERARTR_ZT—RAE+—A+LEE
TRRERSIAE DRBNERRER 1
“E-RF+ZANB (REHAH)BIAR
NABERBMEOBIRE R BT
B TR AT R X — IR ABRFIMES R B
R AD ©

R-ZE—RAF+-A++tRB BHEEERA
£533,261 T Y3 AR FR RN B2 53,326, 1588 &
BEEEO.0OT A EmAY - 2 SRR TR TY
i 2% K 3817 T A ERR AT AR AU AR 3R -

BREARANR-_ZB-—R"ELA-TNBE
THERRBFREG BB ERRER"
R-ZE—XRFNAANR (B (RE
ARAZE—RFNA-BZREMRTRL
BEHHAR-EZ-R"FN\ALAEEEZE "%
—ANENANR) BINAR BRI
REBAR BERTHA TIRERH TEK
K — B ABRFIEBUR HOFALAD ©

RZZ—XRNENA+TSB BRIDRERAR
586,588 7L HY AR FA A B /2 58,658, 774 B i
EEOOT T T @AY ZE e T Bk HEd
BRBITTEREREARARR -
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26. RESERVES

The Group

Details of the movements in the Group’s reserves are set
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.
The natures and purposes of reserves within equity are as
follows:

(a)

(M)

(ii)

(iir)

Share premium

The share premium account is governed by the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands and may be
applied by the Company subject to the provisions, if
any, of its memorandum and articles of association
in paying distributions or dividends to equity
shareholders.

No distribution or dividend may be paid to the equity
shareholders out of the share premium account
unless immediately following the date on which the
distribution or dividend is proposed to be paid, the
Company will be able to pay its debts as they fall due
in the ordinary course of business.

Fair value reserve

The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative net
change in the fair value of available-for-sale securities
held at the end of the reporting period and is dealt
with in accordance with the accounting policy set out
in note 4(d).

Hedging reserve

The hedging reserve comprises the effective portion
of the cumulative net change in the fair value of the
hedging instruments used in cash flow hedges pending
subsequent recognition of the hedged cash flow in
accordance with the accounting policy set out in note
A(f).

26. filifh

()
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26. RESERVES (Continued) 26. Flifl (&)
(b) The Company by ARAF
Share Hedging Retained
premium reserve profits Total
R EE e REBEN @it
$000 $000 $000 $000
T T i r
At 1 April 2015 R-E-HTENA-H 100,889 - 30,910 131,799
Profit and total comprehensive AEERHREENE
income for the year - - 82,094 82,094
Issuance of new shares under the RIBA R AT ETA)
bonus issues (notes 25) and (i) SR (HE250%03)) (1,018) - - (1,018)
Interim dividend declared and paidin =~ 2B R R XN AREEL
respect of the current year RERE (HiH156)
(note 13@)) - - (21,330) (21,330)
Final dividend approved in respect of ~ #t&B E—FERRBRE
the previous year (note 13()) (B130)) - - (20,361) (20,361)
At 31 March 2016 R-ZE-XEZA=1-H 99,871 - 71313 171,184
Profit and total comprehensive REERTRZENE
income for the year - - 158,497 158,497
Effective portion of changes in fair FRERANEPTA
value of hedging instruments AHEEBNENES
recognised during the year, MBRHE
net of tax - 477 - 477
Issuance of new shares under the RIBAL R BT 21TA)
bonus issues (note 25 (iij) HiR b (Ha2250i) (586) - - (586)
Interim dividend declared and paidin =~ 2ER R XN AEEH
respect of the current year RS (Wit 15@)
(note 13(a)) = = (25,810) (25,810)
Final dividend approved in respect of ~ #tAEB L —FERRIKE
the previous year (note 13(b)) (Ha#130) - = (23,464) (23,464)
At 31 March 2017 R-Z-t#=A=+-H 99,285 477 180,536 280,298

At 31 March 2017, the aggregate amount of the Company’s
reserves available for distribution to equity shareholders
of the Company, as calculated in accordance with the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands and the Company’s
memorandum and articles of association, was $279,821,000

(2016: $171,184,000).

ERREBIZERER AT ¢ 2016/17 FERE

RZE—+tF=A=+—H" KQ7A]
HARF AR RS RN FEEER
(REFASEE R RVENU AR )AL
ERAFRMARFTE) £279,821,0007T
(ZF—7X4 :171,184,0007T ) °
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27.
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27. M2 w5 IR DL

POSITION
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
Notes $'000 $'000
it Fx T
Non-current assets RBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y BB L& 202 110
Investment in subsidiaries HEK B A A = -
Loans to subsidiaries BEXFHERR 478,958 46,458
Deferred tax assets RIETHIEEE 533 -
Derivative financial instruments PTEeERmT A 571 -
. 480,264 46,568
Current assets RBEE
Loan to a subsidiary BERTHBA 2,500 2,500
Prepayment and other receivables iﬁﬁm&ﬁ’r&fﬂﬁzm 491,336 218,590
Pledged deposits EHERER 2,000 -
Cash and bank balances Be RIRTET 2,247 21,539
498083 242,629
Current liabilities RBEE
Other payables H e IR 44,954 61,193
Bank loans IRITER 29,143 1,011
Loan from a subsidiary Sy =MNSIEEE A 2,500 2,500
. 76597 64,704
Net current assets re&sE®& 421,486 177,925
Total assets less current liabilities ZEERTREBAR 901,750 224,493
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27. HOLDING COMPANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 27. #EBRAFMBRIE (2)
POSITION (Continuea)

2017 2016
—E—+t & —E—RF
Notes $'000 $'000
it Ft Tt
Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Bank loan RITEK 37,500 2,443
Loans from subsidiaries HExmEx 577,500 . 45,000
615000 47,443
NET ASSETS EEFE 286,750 177,050
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BARGEE
Share capital fi& 7 25 6,452 5,866
Reserves ] 26(b) 280,298 171,184
TOTAL EQUITY R 286,750 177,050
On behalf of the Board REEZE
Chan Hung Ming Lau Chi wah
BB 25
Director Director
- EZ
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28. B2 W
AT RABEEATEREBHEE -
BERABZHWEBLRNES BBAEMIE
SN B R DERRE L @A

28. SUBSIDIARIES
The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries
which principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the
Group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise

stated.
Proportion of ownership interest
BEEERLH
Place of Particulars of Group's
incorporation issued and effective Held by the Held by a
Name of subsidiary and business paid-up capital interest Company subsidiary  Principal activity
BRITR x5H H
WEAREE BIREELE EHEREAR BEEER MAQARE DNEABE  FTER
Grand Tech Construction Hong Kong $5,000,000 100% - 100%  Construction
Company Limited
EREEERAR Bk 5,000,0007T 100% - 100% RE
Wellford Properties Limited Hong Kong $100 100% - 100%  Property investment
BYEXBRAR BE 1007t 100% - 100% WERE
Winning Tech Limited Hong Kong $1 100% - 100%  Property investment
BEIRRRA 6 17 100% - 100% MERE
Top Regent Investments Limited Hong Kong $1 100% - 100%  Property holding
REREBRAR 20 17 100% - 100% WERE
Dragon Development Limited Hong Kong $1 100% - 100%  Property development
EEERBERAR A 17 100% - 100% WEEE
Eson Development Limited Hong Kong $100 100% - 100%  Property holding
ERERERAA 20 1007 100% - 100% WERE
Easton Development Limited Hong Kong $100 100% - 100%  Property investment
REERBRAR A 1007 100% - 100% MERE
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29. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 29. & AE B A by

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern in
order to fund its construction business and property development
and investment projects, provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to maintain a balance between the higher shareholder
returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings
and the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital
position, and makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of
changes in economic conditions.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to any
externally imposed capital requirements.

As at 31 Mar 2017, the Group’s current ratio (defined as current
assets divided by current liabilities) was 4.89 times (31 Mar
2016: 1.07 times). The Group's gearing ratio (defined as total
interest-bearing borrowings divided by shareholders’ equity) was
approximately 100.1% (31 Mar 2016: approximately 43.3%).

AEBEREANTERBRARERNEER
BIEENEEN URREENRBEXEBIAR
MEZRNMKREBEBRRES RERREE
i ) 2 4 B B A 10 e M A B A R AR £
BB AN RS LARE B AN

AREEBEREE PR REREEERRE
PAFE 3R /= IR 121 5 ( mJ BE M BE B = MY R KK
) EEREE AR KA 4 BE S (R IR 2 [
BiGF Y RARKER RN HBER
Rig e

AR RIS AL B A AU RS AN
M E A EFIR -

R_E—+FZA=+—8 AEENRH
R (RBEERRDER) BLOE (ZF
—ANEZAZ+—B8:1.07%) - AEEK
EARBELE (GHEERAHEBRBEER)
£91001% (ZE—ARF=A=+—H: %
433%) °
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30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Exposure to credit, liquidity and interest rate risks arises in the
normal course of the Group’s business. The Group’s exposure
to these risks and the financial risk management policies and
practices used by the Group to manage these risks are described
below.

(a)

Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to bank
deposits, financial derivative instruments and trade and
other receivables. The Group maintains a defined credit
policy and the exposures to these credit risks are monitored
on an ongoing basis.

Cash is deposited with financial institutions with sound
credit ratings and the Group has exposure limit to any
single financial institution. Transactions involving derivative
financial instruments are with counterparties of sound
credit standing. Given their high credit ratings, management
does not expect any of these financial institutions and
counterparties will fail to meet their obligations.

Before entering into construction contracts, assessment
of the potential customers is carried out as part of the
acceptance procedures for the new contracts.

Regular review and follow-up actions are carried out on
overdue amounts of trade receivables from customers
which enable management to assess their recoverability and
to minimise the exposure to credit risk. Trade receivables are
due within 0-30 days from the date of billing. Normally, the
Group does not obtain collateral from customers.

In respect of rental income from leasing properties, rental
deposits are held to cover potential exposure to credit
risk. An ageing analysis of the receivables is prepared on a
regular basis and is closely monitored to minimise any credit
risk associated with these receivables. Adequate impairment
losses have been made for estimated irrecoverable
amounts.

30.
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30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(a)

Credit risk (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has significant
concentration of credit risk in a few customers. In view
of their credit standing, good payment record and long
established relationships with the Group, management does
not consider the Group’s credit risk to be significant. At the
end of the reporting period, 7.2% and 97% (2016: 38% and
79%) of the total trade receivables was due from the Group's
largest customer and the five largest customers respectively.

Except for the financial guarantees given by the Group as
set out in note 32, the Group does not provide any other
guarantees which would expose the Group to credit risk.
The maximum exposure to credit risk in respect of these
financial guarantees at the end of the reporting period is
disclosed in note 32.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group's
exposure to credit risk arising from trade and other
receivables are set out in note 19.

Liquidity risk

Individual subsidiaries within the Group are responsible
for their own cash management, including the raising of
loans to cover the expected cash demands, subject to
approval by the Company’s board of directors. The Group’s
policy is to regularly monitor current and expected liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending covenants,
to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and
adequate committed funding lines from major financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer term.

30. SV e B A PR R <k THL A P

(#&)
(a)

ERREBIZERER AT ¢ 2016/17 FERE

& B (&)

RREMR AEEIERFPFEEX
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30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)  Liquidity risk (Continued)
The following table details the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the
Group's financial liabilities, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on

30. SV e B A PR R <k THL A P

(%)

(b) REE & E R (F)
TRANAEEZERBERREH
RETAQZEBER - BIHREE KR

MERDRE

BREEMHNE (8

F R AREREIRIRITHE) 5
BB RAKE AR E KA

rates current at the end of the reporting period) and the M&F HEmME L
earliest date the Group can be required to pay:
The Group AEE
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
ENABER SR
More than  More than
Within 1 year but 2 years but
1yearor lessthan  lessthan More than Carrying
on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total amount
-FRrg  —FENLE WENL
REX EmMENR BRENR BENL @t REE
$000 $000 $000 $'000 $'000 $000
Tr Tr Tr Tr Tr Tr
At 31 March 2017 “E-t£=A=1+-H
Bank loans RITER 184,092 133,707 2,109,635 527,498 2,954,932 2,638,026
Trade payable, other payablesand ~ JER B EMERFER
accrued charges EHER 146,535 - - - 146535 146,535
Retention payables ERRES 27,892 27,896 4,801 - 60,589 60,589
358,519 161,603 2,114,436 527,498 3,162,056 2,845,150
Derivative settled net: RIBEENTEIER:
Interest rate swap contracts FlEEEHAY 614 614 667 - 1,895 142
At 31 March 2016 R-B-REZA=1-H
Bank loans FITER 152,958 544,109 395,684 MmM3 113384 1,070,255
Trade payables, other payables and ~ FEFTBRFT Etu e 3UE )
accrued charges E:HER 155,850 - - - 155,850 155,850
Retention payables EfTRES 23,072 8,207 23,075 - 54,354 54,354
331,880 552,316 418,759 1113 1,344,068 1,280,459
Derivative settled net: REFBEENTELR:
Interest rate swap contracts MEEEBAY 6,906 6,350 15,653 - 29,409 8,530
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30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(€)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk through the
impact of rates changes on interest-bearing borrowings
which predominantly bear floating interest rates. The Group
monitors closely its interest rate exposure and the level of
fixed rate and floating rate borrowing and considers hedging
interest rate exposure should the need arise. The Group's
interest rate profile as monitored by management is set out
in (ii) below.

The interest rates and terms of repayment of interest-
bearing borrowings of the Group are disclosed in note 22 to
the financial statements.

() Hedging

Interest rate swaps, denominated in Hong Kong dollars,
have been entered into to achieve an appropriate mix
of fixed and floating rate (mainly Hong Kong Interbank
Offer Rate) exposure consistent with the Group's
policy. At 31 March 2017, the Group had interest rate
swaps with a notional contract amount of $89,851,000
(2016: $606,500,000), which it has designated as cash
flow hedges of the interest rate risk inherent in its
variable rate bank borrowings. At 31 March 2017 and
2016, the Group did not have any interest rate swaps
which were not designated as cash flow hedging
instruments.

The swaps mature over the next four years and
have fixed swap rates ranging from 1.30% to 1.80%
(2016: 0.89% t0 1.80%). The net fair value of swaps
contracts entered into by the Group at 31 March 2017
was $429,000 (2016: $8,530,000). These amounts are
recognised as derivative financial instruments (note
23).

30. SV e B A PR R <k THL A P

(#)
(c)

EREBZERAERDE ¢ 2016/17 FERS
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(i) #

ANEBE DM IAB T AHER F R
BHAL WEBFAALEER
ENEEETRFBHFEREAR
HE - N_TE—+F=A=1+—
B AEEBEEREANEE
#489,851,0007T ( =T — /N4
606,500,0007T ) By FI| R 35 #f &
AR ZEHMERBITER
NEFRRABRNE S REL H o
RZE—RNER_E—+F=H
—t+— R AEETESEIM
EEEAEBESREH P TAN
FRBEAL
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30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES  30. B4 % s 45 B & 4 b T 5 2 P{E

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) (&)
(c) Interest rate risk (Continueq) (c)
(ii) Interest rate profile

The following table details the interest rate profile of

the Group's net borrowings (as defined above) at the

end of the reporting period, after taking into account

the effect of interest rate swaps designated as cash

flow hedging instruments (see (i) above).

AR Ja B (42 )

(i)

FIFER
TRHFEREEAREREY
HATANNXEHNPZER K
SERNBERRNEFFR G
EREOMMERER (R EX
(i) e

2017 2016
ZE-tF “ERE
Effective Effective
interest rate Amount interest rate Amount
ERFIE 8 ERA= &8
% $'000 % $'000
Fr T
Net fixed rate borrowings: BEEFIRERFE:
Bank loans RITER 2.94 89,643 339 611,708
Variable rate borrowings:  SBF =&
Bank loans RITER 2,58 2,548,383 370 458,547
Total net borrowings BIEFFE 2,638,026 1,070,255
Net fixed rate borrowings as 2 IR (£ 2% 4815
a percentage of total net BIEFFENE DL
borrowings 3.40% 52.16%
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30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(€)

(d)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

(iij)  Sensitivity analysis
At 31 March 2017, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates,
with all other variables held constant, would have
decreased/increased the Group's profit after taxation
and total equity by approximately $21,279,000 (2016:
$3,829,000), in response to the general increase/
decrease in interest rates.

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates had
occurred at the end of the reporting period and had
been applied to the exposure to interest rate risk
for borrowings made by the Group which were not
hedged by interest rate swap contracts. The analysis
has been performed on the same basis for the year
2016.

Foreign currency risk

The Group has no significant exposure to foreign currency
risk as substantially all of the Group’s transactions are
denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

30. SV e B A PR R <k THL A P

(#&)
(c)

(d)

) 2 e
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TR FF R A 001E &
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30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(e)

Fair value measurement

(M)

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair
value

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group's financial instruments measured at the end of
the reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised
into the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined
in HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The level
into which a fair value measurement is classified
is determined with reference to the observability
and significance of the inputs used in the valuation
technique as follows:

Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only
Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date

Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2
inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level
1, and not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market data
are not available.

Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs.

30. SV e B A PR R <k THL A P

(#&)
(e)
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30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(e) Fair value measurement (Continued)
Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair

(1)

30.

P A B 4 ik T L A
(%)
) AT (4)

(i) BEAFEABHEZHBEERERE

value (Continued) (%)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) NFESR(E)
The Group RE
Fair value at )
31 March Fair value measurement as at
2017 31 March 2017 categorised into
R-B—tE R=B-tEZA=1+-BNAVETRAIER
=A=1+-H Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
NATE F-R F=R F=R
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T Tr
Assets EE
Available-for-sale securities At HEES 13,884 - 13,884 -
Derivative financial fTESBTA
instruments ~FIREHAY
- Interest rate swaps 571 - 571 =
Liabilities 8%
Derivative financial MTESBTA
instruments R ESEEE )
- Interest rate swaps 142 - 142 -
Fair value at ,
31 March Fair value measurement as at
2016 31 March 2016 categorised into
S T RZE-REZAZ+-BNALENENER
=R=1+—H Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
MATE -1 EF-R) EF=)
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T Fr T
Assets EE
Available-for-sale securities  AfEHEZES 12,809 - 12,809 -
Liabilities 8
Derivative financial fTESBTA
instruments ~FIEBHED
- Interest rate swaps 8,530 - 8,530 -

EHEBERBRAT 0 2016/17 FEHRE
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30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

(e)

(M)

(ii)

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair
value (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

During the years ended 31 March 2017 and 2016,
there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2,
or transfers into or out of Level 3. The Group’s policy
is to recognise transfers between levels of fair value
hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in which
they occurred.

Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 2 fair
value measurements

The fair value of available-for-sale securities is based
on quoted market prices at the end of the reporting
period without any deduction for transaction costs.

The fair values of interest rate swaps are the estimated
amount that the Group would receive or pay to
terminate the swap at the end of the reporting period,
taking into account current interest rates and the
current credit worthiness of the swap counterparties.

Fair values of financial instruments carried at
other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the
Company’s financial instruments carried at cost or
amortised cost are not materially different from their
fair values as at 31 March 2017 and 2016.
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31.

32.

33.

COMMITMENTS 31. A&
Capital commitments outstanding at 31 March 2017 not provided RZEBE—+tF=ZA=+—HBRXBIEEREHE
for in the Group's financial statements were as follows: REBEPBmERBEHERAENT
2017 2016
—E—+F ZE—RF
$'000 $'000
T T
Contracted for 2ET#) 9,203 11,674
Authorised but not contracted for BHUEERETH 10,783 64,229
19,986 75,903
The capital commitments solely related to development BEARFREELASBERTLRAENERIEA
expenditure for a data centre building. 7o
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 32. A AIH
At 31 March 2017, the Company had contingent liabilities in RZZE—+F=A=+—H0 XRaEH
respect of performance bonds to guarantee for the due and BRAEBER -—RMBARBITHAZER
proper performance of the obligations undertaken by one of £ 11 2% H 7B 491R 75 /Y =k 74 & f& A&29,307,000
the Group's subsidiaries amounting to HK$29,307,000 (2016: BT (ZZF—78F 1 132,977,000 7T) °
HK$132,977,000).
MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 33. EREABTZ 5
(@ In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed @ KRUBRREMIBOFABEENZTIR
elsewhere in this financial statement, the Group had the EERIN  REENAREFRI A T EKRA
following material related party transactions: BT 5
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
$'000 $'000
Fr T
Rental paid to Perfect Top ¥ {J 1 & T Perfect Top
Development Limited (“Perfect Top”) Development Limited
and Gain Glory Development (TPerfect Top J) &
Limited (“Gain Glory") Gain Glory Development
Limited ([ Gain Glory J) - 652

FRHEBEIERAR DT ¢ 2016/17 FEHRE
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33. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

@)

(Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Rental expenses paid were based on normal
commercial terms and in the ordinary and usual
course of the Group's business. These transactions
constitute continuing connected transactions as
defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Mr. Chan Hung Ming and Mr. Lau Chi Wah, being
directors of the Company, are directors and ultimate
beneficial owners of Perfect Top and Gain Glory.

On 17 September 2015, pursuant to the terms of
the lease agreements, the Group served a notice to
Perfect Top and Gain Glory to terminate the lease
agreements with effect from 21 September 2015.
Other than the rental payable up to 20 September
2015, neither party is required to pay any penalty or
compensation to the other party in respect of the
termination of the lease agreements.

Remuneration of key management personnel, including
amounts paid to the directors as disclosed in note 11
and certain of the highest paid employees and senior

33. EABEBHARS (#&)

(@)

(0)

(%)

(i)

(if)

(iii)

HWEEERRIR—REEK
FOARANEEEHENBEER—
REBBEPET REXHE
B TR BI B 14AT R TE V58

PRFLAAE A R BIEFELERAEARD
RIEVE £ % I APerfect Topk
Gain GloryMEE R GRE=HEE
/\0

R—ZZE—RAFNLA+tE R
BHEBENKT AEEM
Perfect Top & Gain Glory# it 5 —
T-RAEANA-+ BRI
EHE -BEE-_E-RENA
—+HIEOHESI BETHS
ARRIEREREmMAS — A
R El FR ek BEE -

TEEEABNHM (BRENESH
SRR ENBE A T &S
BERSARETEE BRI E12

management as disclosed in note 12, is as follow: WEWT
2017 2016
—E—tF —ERF
$'000 $'000
Fi Fi
Short-term employee benefits 2 HiE B 18 A 12,559 11,255
Post-employment benefits RIRIEF 132 126
12,691 11,381
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continueq)
B ISR ()

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREFRIZEERSN - LA TSI TR)

33.

34.

35.

36.

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

The related party transactions in respect of the remuneration
of directors and chief executives of the Company constitute
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. However, these transactions are exempt from reporting,
announcement and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The related party transactions in respect of the remuneration
of key management personnel (other than directors and chief
executives) of the Company did not fall under the definition of
connected transactions or continuing connected transactions as
defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

After the end of the reporting period, the directors proposed a
final dividend. Further details are disclosed in note 13(a).

IMMEDIATE PARENT AND ULTIMATE HOLDING
COMPANY

At 31 March 2017, the directors consider the immediate parent
and ultimate holding company of the Group to be Chan HM
Company Limited, which is incorporated in the BVI. This entity
does not produce financial statements available for public use.

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue
by the Board of Directors on 1 June 2017.

33.

34.

35.

36.

FRHEBEIERAR DT ¢ 2016/17 FEHRE

HABB RS (&)

BRARBEERTIBITHRAB ZFHMAH

BITZXZEBALETMRANEBUAZREDN
F‘ﬁﬂ R R RIEETRAUFUAE &
LR BARPRE  RERBILRRUAER
Fo

ARARBETEEEAR (EEMEETH

ABRRIN B BEEE T XS I ARTEA LT

RAIFVUAZIAENEB R S RFERE
%O

e R 1% JE R B 2R

RBERERE EFTFFRERBBRE -
#E— BB M EE13(a) K

R B4 R B g B A )

RZBE—+F=A=+—HB EFRR K
SENEEZESRARGEERARIRBNE
BRE A S M #Chan HM Company
Limited ° 1t 2 88 30 8 4R Bt X R0 A B0 B 7
W o

$ 55 ¥t A i A%
AR BREGEEEGN-F
B R TIE o

—tFRA—H
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PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP

rEBREREUFER

The particular of the Group's investment properties and buildings held

for own use are as follows:

AEENRENERBRAMEZHBNOT

Location Use Tenure

ih B A® FHHA

Investment properties

iTech Tower Data centre use Medium-term lease

No. 28 Pak Tin Par Street
Tsuen Wan

New Territories, Hong Kong
BEFR

B H % %285

iTech Tower 2

No. 56 Ta Chuen Ping Street
Kwai Chung

New Territories, Hong Kong
BEETR

By

FTHEIT 75655

22/F, No. 39 Chatham Road South,
Tsim Sha Tsui

Kowloon, Hong Kong
BENBESRDIER B EFIR2E

Buildings held for own use
HRAY*E

18/F, No. 39 Chatham Road South,
Tsim Sha Tsui

Kowloon, Hong Kong

BB NEESR D IR R R E FE3957 1818

19/F, No. 39 Chatham Road South,
Tsim Sha Tsui

Kowloon, Hong Kong

BB NFER D IR RFE 395 196

ZUERH L

Data centre use
2RO

Office premises
E /NS ES

Office premises

WAZME

Office premises
WREYE

S EiER

Medium-term lease
FHEIFR A

Medium-term lease
FRHAFE 4

Medium-term lease

TR 4

Medium-term lease
R HAFE 4
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